Offering Memorandum: Part II of Offering Document (Exhibit A to Form
C)

Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc.
615 Maury St
Richmond, VA 23224
https://www.belleislecraftspirits.com/

Up to $1,235,000.00 Convertible Promissory Note.
Minimum Target Amount: $15,000.00

A crowdfunding investment involves risk. You should not invest any funds in this
offering unless you can afford to lose your entire investment.

In making an investment decision, investors must rely on their own examination of
the issuer and the terms of the offering, including the merits and risks involved. These
securities have not been recommended or approved by any federal or state securities
commission or regulatory authority. Furthermore, these authorities have not passed
upon the accuracy or adequacy of this document.

The U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission does not pass upon the merits of any
securities offered or the terms of the offering, nor does it pass upon the accuracy or
completeness of any offering document or literature.

These securities are offered under an exemption from registration; however, the U.5.
Securities and Exchange Commission has not made an independent determination
that these securities are exempt from registration.

In the event that we become a reporting company under the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, we intend to take advantage of the provisions that relate to “Emerging
Growth Companies” under the JOBS Act of 2012, including electing to delay
compliance with certain new and revised accounting standards under the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.



Company:

Company: Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc.
Address: 615 Maury St, Richmond, VA 23224
State of Incorporation: VA

Date Incorporated: April 10, 2013

Terms:
Convertible Promissory Notes

Offering Minimum: $10,000.00 of Convertible Promissory Note.
Offering Maximum: $1,235,000.00 of Convertible Promissory Note.
Type of Security Offered: Convertible Promissory Note.
Note converts to Series B Preferred Stock when the company raises
$2,000,000.00 in a qualified equity financing.
Maturity Date: December 31, 2027

Discount Rate: 20.0%
Annual Interest Rate: 8.0%
Minimum Investment Amount (per investor): $250.00

Terms of the underlying Security

Underlying Security Name: Series B Preferred Stock

Voting Rights:
1 vote per share.

Material Rights:

<p>Liquidiation Preference:</p> <p>(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation
Event (as defined below), the holders of shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding
shall be entitled to be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for
distribution to its shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of
Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred, Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one
times (1x) the Series B Original Issue Price (as defined below) together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and (b) such amount per share of Series B
Preferred as would have been payable had all shares of Series B Preferred been
converted into Common Stock pursuant to Section B.2 of Article IV immediately prior
to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence is
hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation Amount™). If upon any such
Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of Series B Preferred the
full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(a) of Article IV, the
holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in any distribution of the
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assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would
otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series B
Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B Preferred subject to
appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or
other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.</p> <p>(b) Upon the
occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series B Liquidation
Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series
A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the purpose of this
Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to be paid out of
the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by reason of their ownership
thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the Series A-1 Preferred
Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original Issue Price together
with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this
sentence is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-1 Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with
respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-2 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-2
Liquidation Amount”); and (iii) with respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x%) the Series A-3 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3 Liquidation Amount™). If upon any such
Liquidation Event the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred,
Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred the full amount to which they shall be
entitled under this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1
Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share
ratably in any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the
respective amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by
them upon such distribution if all amounts pavable on or with respect to such shares
were paid in full. The “Series A-1 Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for
the Series A-1 Preferred, the “Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per
share for the Series A-2 Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean
$21.01 per share for the Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in
the event of any stock dividend, stock split, combination or other similar
recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.</p> <p>(c) Upon the occurrence of
any Liguidation Event, after the payment in full of the Series B Liquidation Amount,
the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2 Liquidation Amount and the Series
A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of the Corporation available for
distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed among the holders of shares of
Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred,
pro rata based on the number of shares held by each such holder, treating for this
purpose all such securities as if they had been converted to Common Stock pursuant
to the terms of this Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation immediately
prior to such Liquidation Event.</p> <p>(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by



the holders of at least a majority of the outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting
together as a separate class (which majority includes the holders of a majority of the
Series B Preferred, voting as a</p> <p>separate class) (the “Preferred Majority”), in
any specific instance a "Liquidation Event” shall mean anvy liquidation, dissolution or
winding up of the Corporation, either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed
to be occasioned by, or to include: &nbsp;</p> <p>(i) a sale or transfer of all or
substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any transaction or series of related
transactions (including, without limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license
or other disposition of all or substantially all of the Corporation's assets, stock
acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);</p> <p>(il) any merger,
consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by means of any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation),
except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which Corporation is the
surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger, consolidation or
reorganization, the holders of Corporation's outstanding capital stock (on a fully-
diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or reorganization or
their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger, consolidation or
reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power of Corporation or
the surviving corporation, as the case may be;</p> <p>(iii) any sale or series of sales of
shares of Corporation's capital stock by the holders thereof which results in any
person or group of affiliated persons (other than the current owners of Corporation's
capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority of the voting power of
Corporation; or</p> <p>(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation;
except that the consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a
merger effected exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by
the Corporation of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing
transactions, or in a Qualified Public Offering (as defined below), shall not be deemed
a Liquidation Event for this purpose.</p> <p>(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation
as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be distributed in a form other than cash, its
value will be deemed its fair market value as determined in any acquisition agreement
between the Corporation and the acquiring party, and if there is no such agreement,
then in good faith by the Board of Directors. Any securities to be delivered to the
holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock, as the case may be, shall be valued as
follows:</p> <p>(i) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global
Market System (or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital
Market, the value shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the
securities on such exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to
the closing;</p> <p>(ii) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed
to be the average of the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the
thirty (30) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;</p> <p>(iii) If there is
no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof, as determined
in good faith by the Board of Directors; and</p> <p>(iv) The method of valuation of
securities subject to investment letter or other restrictions on free marketability
(other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a shareholder’'s status as an affiliate



or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate level to reflect the approximate
fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors.</p>
<p>(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written
notice of an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later
than thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders' meeting called to approve such
transaction, or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is
earlier, and shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such
transaction. The first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions
of the impending transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder
prompt notice of any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place
sooner than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided
for herein or sooner than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any
material changes provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be
shortened or waived entirely upon the Corporation's receipt of written consent of the
holders of Preferred Majority.</p> <p></p> <p>Conversion: Each share of the Preferred
Stock shall automatically be converted into one share of Common Stock upon the
earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of the Corporation's sale of its Common
Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public offering pursuant to an effective
registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, with aggregate
gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least $25,000,000 before deduction of
underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like (a "Qualified Public Offering™),
and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.</p>

*Annual Interest Rate subject to adjustment of 5% - 50%. See bonus interest perks
below

Investment Incentives & Bonuses™

Time-Based Perks

First Two Weeks | $1,000+

Invest $1,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 5% increase in the annual
interest rate

First Two Weeks | $5,000+

Invest $5,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 7% increase in the annual
interest rate

First Two Weeks | $10,000+

Invest $10,000+ within the first two weeks and receive 10% increase in the annual
interest rate

Volume-Based Perks

Tier 1| $500+



Invest $500+ and receive early access to a super secret product release, along with 1
exclusive Belle Isle Moonshine shirt and a set of 2 custom Belle Isle Moonshine
cocktail glasses.

Tier 2 | $1,000+

Invest $1,000+ and receive perks from previous tiers, along with early access to our
first ever Bourbon release in Q4 2023, 1 exclusive Belle Isle Moonshine hoodie, and
access to 15% off Belle Isle merch.

Tier 3| $5,000+

Invest $5,000+ and receive perks from previous tiers, along with a lifetime of free neat
tastings at our tasting room and access to 25% off Belle Isle merch.

Tier 4 | $10,000+

Invest $10,000+ and receive perks from previous tiers, along with an invitation to a
private community where you will help us decide on future products and an artist-
signed bottle of our next specialty release.

Tier 5| $25,000+

Invest $25,000+ and receive perks from previous tiers, along with an invitation to a
private opening of our new distillery tasting room and bar.

Tier 6 | $50,000+

Invest $50,000+ and receive perks from previous tiers, along with an invitation to an
in-person VIP R&D tasting panel of new and experimental products.

Lovalty Bonus

Previous investors will receive 10% bonus interest.

*In order to receive perks from an investment, one must submit a single investment in
the same offering that meets the minimum perk requirement. Bonus interest from
perks will not be granted if an investor submits multiple investments that, when
combined, meet the perk requirement. All perks occur when the offering is completed.

Crowdfunding investments made through a self-directed IRA cannot receive non-
bonus interest perks due to tax laws. The Internal Revenue Service (IRS) prohibits self-
dealing transactions in which the investor receives an immediate, personal financial
gain on investments owned by their retirement account. As a result, an investor must
refuse those non-bonus interest perks because they would be receiving a benefit from
their IRA account.

The 10% Bonus for StartEngine Shareholders

Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc. ("Belle Isle Craft Spirits" or the "Company”) will offer 10%



additional bonus interest for all investments that are committed by investors that are
eligible for the StartEngine Crowdfunding Inc. OWNer's Bonus.

Eligible StartEngine shareholders will receive a 10% increase in the annual interest
rate on Convertible Promissory Notes in this Offering. This means your annual
interest rate will be 8.8% instead of 8%.

This 10% Bonus is only valid during the investors eligibility period. Investors eligible
for this bonus will also have priority if they are on a waitlist to invest and the company
surpasses its maximum funding goal. They will have the first opportunity to invest
should room in the offering become available if prior investments are canceled or fail.

Investors will receive the highest single bonus they are eligible for among the bonuses
based on the amount invested and time of offering elapsed (if any). Eligible investors
will also receive the Owner’s Bonus and the Loyalty Bonus in addition to the
aforementioned bonus.

The Company and its Business

Company Overview
Company Overview

Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc. ("Belle Isle Craft Spirits" or the "Company”) is a C-Corp.
organized under the laws of the state of Viriginia on 4/10/2013. We believe our
product, "Belle Isle Moonshine,” is the premium moonshine on the market today. The
spirits market has both premium and value segments, similar to most consumer
markets. Surprisingly, the moonshine category is the only one still lacking a premium
player. Research has shown that a significant proportion of consumers, four out of
ten, will opt for premium priced or branded products. Two examples of
premiumization success stories in the spirits industry include Patron, which elevated
the tequila category, and Grey Goose and Absolut, which did the same for vodka.
Before their success, both categories were solely made up of value brands.

Business Model

Belle Isle Craft Spirits is proud to produce and bottle our exceptional craft spirits right
here in Richmond, Virginia. We have a diverse range of revenue streams that allow us
to reach customers through various channels.

1. Virginia ABC: We sell our products to the Virginia ABC, which then distributes them
to over 400 locations across the state. Restaurants and bars also purchase our products
through the VA ABC. Source: https://www.abc.virginia.gov/stores

2. Direct-to-Consumer: We have a strong direct-to-consumer sales model, offering
our products to customers within Virginia as well as in over 35 other states
nationwide.

3. Standard Distribution: we have established relationships with various distributors



who purchase our canned cocktails and sell them to restaurant and retail accounts.
This multi-faceted approach has allowed us to build a strong brand and grow our
customer base in a variety of ways.

Intellectual Property Ownership

Belle Isle holds ownership of multiple registered trademarks, is in possession of a
Distilled Spirits Plant permit issued by the Alcohol and Tobacco Tax and Trade Bureau
(TTB), and has been granted a license by the Virginia Department of Alcoholic
Beverage Control. These legal entitlements lend credibility to the business and are
indicative of its compliance with both state and federal regulations governing the
production and sale of alcoholic beverages.

Competitors and Industry
Competitors

Our competitors, in terms of bottles, are Deep Eddy Vodka and Titos. High Noon and
Cutwater are our competitors on the canned cocktail side.

Qur products have a smooth, clear, and distinct taste that sets them apart from other
moonshine brands and clear spirit competitors, such as vodka. We take pride in using
only 100% organic corn and all-natural ingredients, avoiding any artificial flavors or
colors. Additionally, our products are versatile and can be used in both simple drinks
and complex craft cocktails. Our brand and packaging also showcase our premium,
elevated approach compared to the standard moonshine in a mason jar. We have built
a cult following and loyal fanbase in our home market, which translates to a solid
return customer rate (30% in 2022).

Industry

In the ever-changing spirits industry, product innovation is constant as new and
trendy ingredients emerge. Our product line allows us to stay ahead of the curve and
offer a diverse selection of flavors and infusions, ranging from simple yet delicious
options such as Cold Brew Coffee to more complex and unique flavor pairings like
Honey Habanero and Lemon Lavender. As the ready-to-drink (RTD) beverage category
has also rapidly expanded, we have continued to innovate by creating our own line of
canned cocktails that incorporate our premium moonshine as the base spirit, setting
our taste profile above those containing sugar and malt fermented bases.

Spirits are gaining market share every year over Beer. In 2000, beer accounted for 55%
of the overall market share while spirits accounted for 29%. Today, the consumer
landscape has dramatically shifted. In 2022, beer accounted for just 41%, while spirits
accounted for 42% of the overall market share. Spirits have gained 13 points of total
market share since 2000.

Craft Spirits still have room to grow. Today, the craft beer market share of total US
beer is almost 24%. The craft spirits market share of total US spirits sales is just 7.5%.



Belle Isle's demographic is the Vodka demographic (BICS Demographic doc). Our
target and actual demographic mirrors that of vodka - 70% of our customers are
between the ages of 21-49 with over 65% of those customers being female.

Current Stage and Roadmap
Current Stage

The company is in market. We are currently selling variety packs including Cherry
Lime Drive, Ice Pick, Honey Hab Lemonade, Transfusion, Ruby Red & Soda, Blood
Orange & Soda, Honey Hab & Pineapple, Bramble On, and Shine & Soda.

We are also selling 15 different stand-alone beverages including but not limited to:
Belle Isle Pineapple Coconut, Belle Isle Strawberry Matcha, Belle Isle Lemon Lavender,
Belle Isle 100 Proof, Belle Isle Blood Orange, Belle Isle Cold Brew Coffee, Belle Isle
Ruby Red Grapefruit, Belle Isle Honey Habanero, and more!

Future Roadmap

We have ambitious expansion plans, including launching a tasting room, accelerating
direct-to-consumer sales, increasing our national distribution footprint, and
partnering with a rising celebrity spokesperson. Belle Isle is committed to innovation,
with a product line that includes unique flavors and canned cocktails in a rapidly
growing segment of the market.

The Team

Officers and Directors

Name: Vincent Michael Riggi
Vincent Michael Riggi's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Co-Founder, Chief Executive Officer, Director
Dates of Service: April, 2013 - Present
Responsibilities: Vince is responsible for the day to day operations at Belle Isle
as CEO. He manages the employees, board of directors, and shareholders. He
receives an annual salary of $100,000 and equity bonuses. He also currently
owns 6.96% of the equity in the company.

Name: Michael David Provance

Michael David Provance's current primary role is with Alpine Growth Partners.
Michael David Provance currently services Less than 5 hours per week in their role
with the Issuer.



Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: June, 2021 - Present
Responsibilities: Mike serves as an external board member providing governance
to the company's leadership. He does not receive compensation and does not
own any equity.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Alpine Growth Partners
Title: Managing Partner
Dates of Service: January, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Mike leads the approach to strategic and operational advisory
services for growth- and scale-stage companies. He helps CEOs, owners, and
investors of companies ranging from $5 to $25 million top-line grow their
revenue and increase margins by unlocking value from operational leverage
based on improved systems, powerful data tools, and digital strategies.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: 3x3
Title: CEO
Dates of Service: January, 2018 - December, 2022
Responsibilities: Mike led $20M B2B insights and marketing tech company
focused on the alcohol industry. He crafted new-to-industry strategy for data
collection and localized lovalty marketing. He packaged business for strategic
sale by investor and led outreach to recruit prospective acquirers. He designed
and directed product team to build marketing data platform on a quarterly
product release schedule that analyzed millions of shopper profiles and baskets,
delivering near real-time intelligence and activation for brand and retail clients.

Name: Brandon Tyler Day
Brandon Tyler Day's current primary role is with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Director of Marketing
Dates of Service: July, 2016 - Present
Responsibilities: Brandon oversees all marketing, digital, creative, and brand
efforts and strategy. He receives an annual salary of $108,000 and does not own
any equity in the company.

Name: Brian Wells Quigley



Brian Wells Quigley's current primary role is with Qnovia, Inc. Brian Wells Quigley
currently services Less than 5 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

o Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: August, 2022 - Present
Responsibilities: Brian serves a member of the board. He does not receive
compensation and owns 0.52% of the equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Qnovia, Inc
Title: Chief Executive Officer (March 2022-Present) and Chief Operating Officer
(July 2020-Feb 2022
Dates of Service: July, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Brian built business strategy and operational plan to pursue
FDA CDER authorization for the companies lead asset, a prescription inhalable
smoking cessation therapy. Built asset-light operational model maximizing
internal and external resources to effectively execute science plans (non-clinical
and clinical), clinical device development/commercialization, FDA regulatory
engagement and drug product manufacturing in an entrepreneurial and cost-
effective way. He also leads ongoing financing and BD discussions with investors
and strategic partners. He raised $27MM in funding since July 2020 and secured
one co-development agreement.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Mustgrow Biologics
Title: Independent Director
Dates of Service: March, 2019 - March, 2023
Responsibilities: Brian advised management on company growth strategies,
business development, fund-raising and governance. He also served on the Audit
committee and Compliance committee experience.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Lexaria Biosciences
Title: Independent Director
Dates of Service: July, 2019 - July, 2021
Responsibilities: Brian advised management on company growth strategies,
business development, fund-raising and governance. He also served on the Audit
committee and Compliance committee experience.



Name: Brian Ralph Marks

Brian Ralph Marks's current primary role is with Bonfire.com. Brian Ralph Marks
currently services 10 hours per week in their role with the [ssuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Co-Founder and Chairman of the board (Part Time)
Dates of Service: January, 2014 - Present

Responsibilities: Brian Marks is Co-Founder and Chairman of the Board. He does
not receive compensation and owns 5.7% of the equity in the company.

Other business experience in the past three years:

¢ Employer: Bonfire.com
Title: CEO

Dates of Service: November, 2011 - Present
Responsibilities: Brian serves as CEO of Bonfire.com.

Name: Michael Timothy Malloy
Michael Timothy Malloy's current primary role is with the Issuer.
Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

¢ Position: Director (Part Time)
Dates of Service: October, 2019 - Present
Responsibilities: Michael is a board member. He does not receive compensation
and owns 20.26% of the equity in the company.

Name: Joseph Dale Cheely

Joseph Dale Cheely's current primary role is with Cheely Advisory Services, LLC.
Joseph Dale Cheely currently services 10 hours per week in their role with the Issuer.

Positions and offices currently held with the issuer:

e Position: Chief Financial Officer (Part Time)
Dates of Service: September, 2020 - Present
Responsibilities: Joe serves as business advisory and financial oversight. Joe
receives an annual salary of $36,000.

Other business experience in the past three years:

e Employer: Cheely Advisory Services, LLC
Title: Founder



Dates of Service: April, 2015 - Present

Responsibilities: Joe advises on areas including, but not limited to accounting,
financial management, business planning and analysis, operations efficiencies,
decision support, growth strategy, financial analysis, investor relations,
performance management, and resource management.

Risk Factors

The SEC requires the company to identify risks that are specific to its business and its
financial condition. The company is still subject to all the same risks that all
companies in its business, and all companies in the economy, are exposed to. These
include risks relating to economic downturns, political and economic events and
technological developments (such as hacking and the ability to prevent hacking).
Additionally, early-stage companies are inherently more risky than more developed
companies. You should consider general risks as well as specific risks when deciding
whether to invest.

These are the risks that relate to the Company:

Uncertain Risk

An investment in the Company (also referred to as “we”, “us”, “our”, or “Company”)
involves a high degree of risk and should only be considered by those who can afford
the loss of their entire investment. Furthermore, the purchase of any of the
Convertible Note should only be undertaken by persons whose financial resources are
sufficient to enable them to indefinitely retain an illiquid investment. Each investor in
the Company should consider all of the information provided to such potential
investor regarding the Company as well as the following risk factors, in addition to the
other information listed in the Company’s Form C. The following risk factors are not
intended, and shall not be deemed to be, a complete description of the commercial
and other risks inherent in the investment in the Company.

Our business projections are only projections

There can be no assurance that the Company will meet our projections. There can be
no assurance that the Company will be able to find sufficient demand for our product,
that people think it’s a better option than a competing product, or that we will able to
provide the service at a level that allows the Company to make a profit and still attract
business.

The transferability of the Securities you are buying is limited

Any Convertible Note purchased through this crowdfunding campaign is subject to
SEC limitations of transfer. This means that the stock/note that you purchase cannot
be resold for a period of one year. The exception to this rule is if you are transferring
the stock back to the Company, to an “accredited investor,” as part of an offering
registered with the Commission, to a member of your family, trust created for the
benefit of your family, or in connection with your death or divorce.

Your investment could be illiquid for a long time



You should be prepared to hold this investment for several years or longer. For the 12
months following your investment there will be restrictions on how you can resell the
securities you receive. More importantly, there is no established market for these
securities and there may never be one. As a result, if you decide to sell these securities
in the future, you may not be able to find a buyer. The Company may be acquired by
an existing player in the spirits industry. However, that may never happen or it may
happen at a price that results in you losing money on this investment.

We may not have enough capital as needed and may be required to raise more capital.
We anticipate needing access to credit in order to support our working capital
requirements as we grow. Although interest rates are low, it is still a difficult
environment for obtaining credit on favorable terms. If we cannot obtain credit when
we need it, we could be forced to raise additional equity capital, modify our growth
plans, or take some other action. Issuing more equity may require bringing on
additional investors. Securing these additional investors could require pricing our
equity below its current price. If so, your investment could lose value as a result of this
additional dilution. In addition, even if the equity is not priced lower, your ownership
percentage would be decreased with the addition of more investors. If we are unable
to find additional investors willing to provide capital, then it is possible that we will
choose to cease our sales activity. In that case, the only asset remaining to generate a
return on your investment could be our intellectual property. Even if we are not forced
to cease our sales activity, the unavailability of credit could result in the Company
performing below expectations, which could adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Management Discretion as to Use of Proceeds

Our success will be substantially dependent upon the discretion and judgment of our
management team with respect to the application and allocation of the proceeds of
this Offering. The use of proceeds described below is an estimate based on our current
business plan. We, however, may find it necessary or advisable to re-allocate portions
of the net proceeds reserved for one category to another, and we will have broad
discretion in doing so.

Projections: Forward Looking Information

Any projections or forward looking statements regarding our anticipated financial or
operational performance are hypothetical and are based on management's best
estimate of the probable results of our operations and will not have been reviewed by
our independent accountants. These projections will be based on assumptions which
management believes are reasonable. Some assumptions invariably will not
materialize due to unanticipated events and circumstances beyond management's
control. Therefore, actual results of operations will vary from such projections, and
such variances may be material. Any projected results cannot be guaranteed.

The amount raised in this offering may include investments from company insiders or
immediate family members

Officers, directors, executives, and existing owners with a controlling stake in the
company (or their immediate family members) may make investments in this offering.



Any such investments will be included in the raised amount reflected on the campaign
page.

Minority Holder; Securities with No Voting Rights

As a holder of convertible notes, you will have no voting rights. If the notes convert
into Series B Preferred Stock, you will be a minority holder. As a minority holder of
common stock of the company, you will have limited rights in regard to the corporate
actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities, company
repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or company
transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights
less than those of other investors and will have limited influence on the corporate
actions of the company.

You are trusting that management will make the best decision for the company
You are trusting in management discretion. You are buying securities as a minority
holder, and therefore must trust the management of the Company to make good
business decisions that grow your investment.

Insufficient Funds

The company might not sell enough securities in this offering to meet its operating
needs and fulfill its plans, in which case it will cease operating and you will get
nothing. Even if we sell all the common stock we are offering now, the Company will
(possibly) need to raise more funds in the future, and if it can’t get them, we will fail.
Even if we do make a successful offering in the future, the terms of that offering might
result in your investment in the company being worth less, because later investors
might get better terms.

The Convertible Promissory Notes have no rights to vote until the date of maturity
The Convertible Promissory Notes have no voting rights. This means you are trusting
in management discretion. You will also hold these non-voting securities as a
minority holder. Therefore, you will have no say in the day-to-day operation of the
Company and must trust the management of the Company to make good business
decisions that grow vour investment. Holders of our outstanding Preferred Stock have
liquidation preferences over holders of Common Stock. This liquidation preference is
paid if the amount a holder of Preferred Stock would receive under the liguidation
preference in greater than the amount such holder would have received if such
holder’s shares of Preferred Stock had been converted to Commeon Stock immediately
prior to the liquidation event. If a liquidation event, including a sale of our company,
were to occur then first all creditors and Preferred Stockholder of the Company will be
paid out. If there is any cash remaining, then the Common stockholders will be paid.

This offering involves “rolling closings,” which may mean that earlier investors may
not have the benefit of information that later investors have.

Once we meet our target amount for this offering, we may request that StartEngine
instruct the escrow agent to disburse offering funds to us. At that point, investors
whose subscription agreements have been accepted will become our investors. All
early-stage companies are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, and it is not



uncommon for material changes to be made to the offering terms, or to companies’
businesses, plans or prospects, sometimes on short notice. When such changes
happen during the course of an offering, we must file an amended to our Form C with
the SEC, and investors whose subscriptions have not vet been accepted will have the
right to withdraw their subscriptions and get their money back. Investors whose
subscriptions have already been accepted, however, will already be our investors and
will have no such right.

We face significant market competition

We will compete with larger, established companies who currently have products on
the market and/or various respective product development programs. They may have
much better financial means and marketing/sales and human resources than us. They
may succeed in developing and marketing competing equivalent products earlier than
us, or superior products than those developed by us. There can be no assurance that
competitors will render our technology or products obsolete or that the products
developed by us will be preferred to any existing or newly developed technologies. It
should further be assumed that competition will intensify.

We are an early stage company and have not yet generated any profits

Belle Isle Craft Spirits Inc. was formed on 4/10/2013. Accordingly, the Company has a
limited history upon which an evaluation of its performance and future prospects can
be made. Our current and proposed operations are subject to all business risks
associated with new enterprises. These include likely fluctuations in operating results
as the Company reacts to developments in its market, managing its growth and the
entry of competitors into the market. We will only be able to pay dividends on any
shares once our directors determine that we are financially able to do so. Belle Isle
Craft Spirits Inc. has incurred a net loss and has had limited revenues generated since
inception. There is no assurance that we will be profitable in the next 3 years or
generate sufficient revenues to pay dividends to the holders of the shares.

We have existing patents that we might not be able to protect properly

Because our business is heavily dependent on our intellectual property, the protection
of our intellectual property rights is crucial to the success of our business. We rely, or
will rely, on a combination of patent, trademark, trade secret, copyright law and/or
contractual restrictions to protect our intellectual property. For instance, we have
registered our trademark “BELLE ISLE” with the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office
(“USPTO”). However, these afford only limited protection. Despite our efforts to
protect our proprietary rights, unauthorized parties may attempt to copy aspects of
our intellectual property or obtain and use information that we consider proprietary.
Moreover, policing our proprietary rights is difficult and may not always be effective.
Litigation or proceedings before the USPTO or other governmental authorities and
administrative bodies in the United States and abroad may be necessary in the future
to enforce our intellectual property rights, to protect our patent rights, trade secrets
and domain names and to determine the validity and scope of the proprietary rights of
others. Our efforts to enforce or protect our proprietary rights may be ineffective,
time-consuming and could result in substantial costs and diversion of resources and
could substantially harm our operating results.



QOur trademarks, copyrights and other intellectual property could be unenforceable or
ineffective

Many entities, including some of our competitors, have or may in the future obtain
intellectual property rights that cover or affect products or services related to those
that we offer. Parties making claims of infringement may be able to obtain injunctive
or other equitable relief that could effectively block our ability to provide our products
and services and result in an award of substantial damages. In general, if a court
determines that one or more of our products infringes on intellectual property held by
others, we may be required to cease developing or marketing those products, to obtain
licenses from the holders of the intellectual property, which may not be available at a
reasonable cost or at all, or to redesign those products in such a way as to avoid
infringing the claims. If a competitor holds intellectual property rights, it may not
allow us to use its intellectual property at any price, which could adversely affect our
competitive position. The defense of any lawsuit could result in time consuming and
expensive litigation regardless of the merits of such claims, and damages, license fees,
royalty payments and restrictions on our ability to provide our technology solution
could harm our business. We cannot estimate the extent to which we may be required
in the future to obtain intellectual property licenses or the availability and cost of any
such licenses. Those costs, and their impact on net income, could be material.

The cost of enforcing our trademarks and copyrights could prevent us from enforcing
them

Trademark and copyright litigation has become extremely expensive. Even if we
believe that a competitor is infringing on one or more of our trademarks or copyrights,
we might choose not to file suit because we lack the cash to successfully prosecute a
multi-year litigation with an uncertain outcome; or because we believe that the cost of
enforcing our trademark(s) or copyright(s) outweighs the value of winning the suit in
light of the risks and consequences of losing it; or for some other reason. Choosing not
to enforce our trademark(s) or copyright(s) could have adverse consequences for the
Company, including undermining the credibility of our intellectual property, reducing
our ability to enter into sublicenses, and weakening our attempts to prevent
competitors from entering the market. As a result, if we are unable to enforce our
trademark(s) or copyright(s) because of the cost of enforcement, your investment in
the Company could be significantly and adversely affected.

The loss of one or more of our key personnel, or our failure to attract and retain other
highly qualified personnel in the future, could harm our business

To be successful, the Company requires capable people to run its day to day
operations. As the Company grows, it will need to attract and hire additional
employees in sales, marketing, design, development, operations, finance, legal,
human resources and other areas. Depending on the economic environment and the
Company’s performance, we may not be able to locate or attract qualified individuals
for such positions when we need them. We may also make hiring mistakes, which can
be costly in terms of resources spent in recruiting, hiring and investing in the
incorrect individual and in the time delay in locating the right employee fit. If we are
unable to attract, hire and retain the right talent or make too many hiring mistakes, it
is likely our business will suffer from not having the right employees in the right



positions at the right time. This would likely adversely impact the value of your
investment.

Our ability to sell our product or service is dependent on outside government
regulation which can be subject to change at any time

In response to recent economic challenges, we anticipate that many of the
jurisdictions in which we and our customers do or expect to do business will review
tax and other revenue raising laws and regulations. New income, sales, use or other
tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances could be enacted at any time.
Further, existing tax laws, statutes, rules, regulations or ordinances could be
interpreted, changed, modified or applied adversely to us or our customers. Any
changes to these existing tax laws could adversely affect our business operations and
our business and financial performance. Additionally, new, changed, modified or
newly interpreted or applied tax laws could increase our customers’ and our
compliance, operating and other costs, as well as the costs of our services and
products. Further, these events could decrease the capital we have available to operate
our business. Any or all of these events could adversely impact our business and
financial performance.

We rely on third parties to provide services essential to the success of our business
We rely on third parties to provide a variety of essential business functions for us,
including manufacturing, shipping, accounting, legal work, public relations,
advertising, retailing, and distribution. It is possible that some of these third parties
will fail to perform their services or will perform them in an unacceptable manner. It is
possible that we will experience delays, defects, errors, or other problems with their
work that will materially impact our operations and we may have little or no recourse
to recover damages for these losses. A disruption in these key or other suppliers’
operations could materially and adversely affect our business. As a result, your
investment could be adversely impacted by our reliance on third parties and their
performance.

The Company is vulnerable to hackers and cyber-attacks

As an internet-based business, we may be vulnerable to hackers who may access the
data of our investors and the issuer companies that utilize our platform. Further, any
significant disruption in service on Belle Isle Craft Spirits Inc. or in its computer
systems could reduce the attractiveness of the platform and result in a loss of
investors and companies interested in using our platform. Further, we rely on a third-
party technology provider to provide some of our back-up technology. Any disruptions
of services or cyber-attacks either on our technology provider or on Belle Isle Craft
Spirits Inc. could harm our reputation and materially negatively impact our financial
condition and business.

The Company’s current indebtedness will need to be repaid.

The Company’s current indebtedness will need to be repaid. The company owes (i)
approximately $291,000 to certainly vendor holders of unsecured promissory notes
issued by the company in 2020, each bearing a 2% interest per annum and maturing in
2027, (ii) approximately $604,000 in trade payables and excise tax payable, (iii)



approximately $184,000 in capital lease payments maturing in 2024 and 2025, (iv)
approximately $165,000 due to finance companies due in the next 12 months, (v)
approximately $175,000 in loans payable to related parties, and (vi) $500,000 to the
SBA for and EIDL due over 25 years beginning in 2023. In addition, the Company has
outstanding $139,000 from Village Bank on a PPP loan on January 28, 2021. Our ability
to repay our outstanding debt will depend on our ability to achieve significant and
sustained growth in our cash from operations and to complete any necessary
financing. We may not be able to generate sufficient cash to service our indebtedness,
and if we cannot, we may have to forego or delay development and enhancement of
our technically technology restructure or refinance our indebtedness or seek
additional equity capital or debt financing. Any inability to do so could have a
material adverse effect on the Company and its prospects.

The Company has implemented an enhanced value cash bonus plan.

The Company has implemented an enhanced value cash bonus plan (the “Enhanced
Value Plan”) that would pay to participating executives as cash bonus compensation
their respective vested awards of any increase in the Company’s valuation over the
Company Base Valuation (as defined in the Enhanced Value Plan) on the date a bonus
award is granted. The bonus payments would be made in full upon a Company change
of control or over 5 years upon a good leaver termination of employment. As of the
date hereof, the awards of an aggregate percentage of 10% of the increase in the
Company’s valuation over the Company Base Valuation at $2,791,907 have been
granted to certain key employees and directors, of which an award of 2.5% of the
increase in the Company’s valuation has been granted to each of Vincent Riggi and
Brian Marks (all awards subject to vesting, forfeiture and other restrictions set forth in
the award agreements and the Enhanced Value Plan). The Company Base Valuation
for these awards was determined by the Board in accordance with the Enhanced Value
Plan.

The Company may recommence its offering of Series C Preferred Stock and its offer to
redeem outstanding shares.

In March 2022, the Company commenced an offering of shares of Series C-2 Preferred
Stock in an aggregate amount of up to $3,000,000 (the “Series C Offering”) and began
offering to redeem all or some of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, Series A
Preferred Stock (including Series A-1, A-2 and A-3 Preferred Stock) and Series B
Preferred Stock of the Company held by the existing shareholders of the Company on
certain terms, including price, approved by the Board of Directors (the "Redemption
Offer”). The Company has not sold any shares of Series C Preferred Stock in the Series
C Offering, has not redeemed any shares of stock pursuant to the Redemption Offer,
and, in connection with commencing this Offering, elected to suspend the Series C
Offering and Redemption Offer. In the future, the Company may elect to recommence
the Series C Offering and/or Redemption Offer.

The Company may face potential shareholders’ claims.

The Company has raised more than $10 million from more than 100 investors, who
purchased Common Stock, Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Stock of the
Company. Those investors’ shares may be diluted by this Offering and they might



bring claims against the Company related to their acquisition, ownership or
disposition of such shares, or related to the Offering. The Company does not believe
such claims have any merit, but the defense of any such claim could be time
consuming and expensive for the Company, and could have a material adverse effect
on the Company’s business and operation.

The Company currently is operating at a loss and we may never achieve profitability.
We have an unproven business model that has, as of the Effective Date, incurred
losses, and we have had negative cash flow. We expect to continue to incur significant
operating expenses for the foreseeable future in connection with the continued
development and expansion of our business. As a result, we expect to continue to lose
money for the foreseeable future. The size of these net losses depends in part on our
ability to attract customers, the willingness of our potential customers to acquire our
services and products and the level of our expenses. With increased expenses, we will
need to generate significant additional revenue to achieve profitability. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to achieve operating income or positive cash flows at
any time in the future.

Our business objectives must be considered highly speculative, and there is no
assurance that we will satisfy those objectives.

No assurance can be given that the Purchasers will realize a return on their
investment or that the Purchasers will not lose their entire investment in us. For this
reason, each prospective Purchaser should carefully read and understand the Loan
Documents (including all exhibits and attachments). All prospective Purchasers
should consult with their attorney or business advisors before making an investment.

We face substantial business and financial risks, and all other risks in a rapidly
evolving market.

We will encounter challenges and difficulties in rapidly evolving markets, including:
potential inability to deliver our products and services on time; industry
consolidation, new competitors and large companies may enter our market; increasing
net losses and negative cash flows; sales and use tax issues; operational issues
associated with conducting business across our broad markets; insufficient revenue or
cash flow to be self-sustaining; and if we are successful, difficulties in managing rapid
growth. In addition, disruptions in the financial markets and other macro-economic
challenges currently affecting the economy may have an adverse impact on our
business, results of operations and financial condition. The likelihood of our success
must be considered in light of the problems, expenses, difficulties, complications and
delays frequently encountered in connection with a growing business. There can be no
assurance that we will successfully implement our business plan in a timely or
effective manner.

There can be no assurance that we will be able to continue as a going concern.

QOur limited operating history, minimal revenue, limited working capital and our
capital needs raise substantial doubt about our ability to continue as a going concern.
We can provide no assurances that cash generated from operations together with cash
received in this Offering and in any future financings will be sufficient to enable us to



continue as a going concern. If we are unable to obtain adequate funding or generate
sufficient revenues from the sale of our products and services to satisfy our working
capital requirements, we could be required to significantly curtail or even shut down
our operations.

Our limited operating history may make it difficult for us or the Purchasers to
evaluate trends and other factors that affect our business.

In addition, any evaluation of our business and prospects must be made in light of the
risks and difficulties encountered by companies offering products and services in new
and rapidly evolving markets. For example, it may be difficult to accurately predict
our future revenues, if any, costs of revenues, expenses or results of operations.

Even if we sell all of the Notes offered hereby, we may need to obtain additional
financing in the future to become cash flow positive.

We do not have sufficient cash resources at the present time to fund our operations
while pursuing the multiple commercialization opportunities currently before us. To
complete the implementation of our growth plan within the proposed time frame, to
fund operating losses, to accelerate the commercialization of our products and
services, to expand our sales and marketing efforts, and to become cash flow positive,
we may need to raise funds through additional private equity or debt financings.
Further, we may need to raise additional capital if we fail to achieve our revenue
projections, if we are not able to sell all of the Notes offered hereby, if our estimates of
working capital or capital expenditure requirements change or prove to be inaccurate
or if we wish to expand our business beyond our current business model. We may also
need to raise significant additional funds to respond to unforeseen marketing or
competitive hurdles or to take advantage of unanticipated opportunities.

We may not be successful in raising the funding being sought in this Offering, or in
any follow-on financing.

We have no present commitments or arrangements assuring us of any future equity or
debt financing, and we may not be able to obtain any equity or debt financing on
favorable terms or at all. Any further deterioration of the global economy or delay in
its recovery and any further tightening of the credit markets may have an adverse
effect on our ability to obtain short-term debt financing. Our choice of financing
alternatives may vary from time to time depending on various factors, including the
market price of the Equity Securities, conditions in the financial markets and the
interest of other entities in strategic transactions with us. If additional capital is raised
through the issuance of new Equity Securities, the percentage ownership of our
existing owners and the as-converted equity percentage ownership of the holders of
Notes will decline, and these Equity Securities may have rights, preferences or
privileges senior to those of existing equity owners. Any debt financing, if available,
may involve covenants limiting or restricting our operations or future opportunities.

Absent successful execution of our business plan and significant growth of our cash
flow, we may not be able to service our existing, and any future, indebtedness.

For example, we may reach the due date or be in a position of being required to repay
the Company’s indebtedness without the cash to do so. Our ability to repay the



indebtedness and to make any other scheduled debt service payments will depend on
our ability to achieve significant and sustained growth in our cash from operations
and to complete any necessary additional financing. If we cannot generate sufficient
cash from operations to service our indebtedness, we may have to forego or delay
development and enhancement of our technology, restructure or refinance our
indebtedness or seek additional equity capital or debt financing. We may not be able
to affect any refinancing or new financing strategy on satisfactory terms, if at all. If we
fail to satisfy our obligations with respect to our indebtedness, this could result in the
exercise of enforcement rights by our creditors, including the holders of the Notes.
These enforcement rights may include the rights to accelerate the debt and commence
an involuntary bankruptcy proceeding against us. In any such proceeding, it is
unlikely that Purchasers in the Notes will be repaid in full, if at all.

We may be subject to liability or litigation if our products and services fail to perform
as expected.

While we intend to contractually limit our liability for damages arising from our
provision of products and services, there can be no assurance that they will be
enforceable in all circumstances or in all jurisdictions. Furthermore, litigation,
regardless of contractual limitations, could result in substantial cost to us, divert
management’s attention and resources from our operations and result in negative
publicity that may impair our ongoing marketing efforts.

We face competition.

Most of the companies with which we will compete, or that are expected to offer
products and services based on alternatives to our products and services, have
substantially greater financial, technical, product development, marketing and other
resources than we do. These organizations may be better known and may have more
customers than we do. The financial resources of these competitors may permit them
to adopt more aggressive pricing policies than our policies. While we believe that the
products and services we will offer are superior to and more comprehensive than those
currently being provided by our competitors and while we plan to continually enhance
our products and services, there can be no assurance that the products and services
that we will offer will maintain sufficient quality, functionality or cost-effectiveness to
compete with existing or future alternatives. Furthermore, there can be no assurance
that our competitors will not succeed in developing products and services that are
more effective and/or lower priced than those offered by us or that render our
products and services obsolete. We believe that our ability to compete depends on
factors both within and outside our control. The markets in which we will operate are
extremely competitive and can be significantly influenced by the marketing and
pricing decisions of larger industry participants. We expect competition in our market
to intensify in the future. There can be no assurance that we will be successful in the
face of increasing competition from new technologies, products or services introduced
by existing competitors and by new companies entering the market. If we cannot
compete successfully within our target markets, our business, operating results and
financial condition will be materially adversely affected.

Because competition for highly qualified personnel is intense, we might not be able to



attract and retain key personnel and personnel we need to support our planned
growth.

Qur ability to maintain and expand our management team will depend on our ability
to recruit, train and retain top quality people with advanced skills who understand the
specific needs of our clients. If we are unable to hire or retain qualified personnel, or if
newly hired personnel fail to develop the necessary skills or reach productivity slower
than anticipated, it would be more difficult for us to sell our products and services,
and we could experience a shortfall in revenue or earnings and not achieve our
planned growth.

If we do not execute our growth and profitability strategy successfully, our financial
condition and results of operations will be adversely affected.

QOur growth will depend to a significant degree on our ability to sell our products and
services and to enhance the reach and brand recognition of our products and services.
Our ability to implement our growth strategy will also depend on a number of other
factors, many of which are or may be beyond our control including: (i) the
effectiveness of our media and marketing strategies, (ii) the perception by customers
that we offer high quality products and services at attractive prices, (iii) our ability to
develop and/or select new products and services that appeal to our customer base and
to market such products and services effectively to our target audience, and (iv) our
ability to attract, train and retain qualified employees and management. There can be
no assurance that we will be able to implement our growth strategy successfully and
such inability could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

Rapid growth may place a significant strain on our resources.

We anticipate rapid expansion of our operations as we develop and launch our
products and services. If we are unable to manage our growth effectively, our business
could be materially harmed. Our rapid expansion may place significant demands on
our management and our operational and financial infrastructure. As our operations
grow in size, scope and complexity, we will need to improve and upgrade our systems
and infrastructure. The expansion of our systems and infrastructure will require us to
commit substantial financial, operational and technical resources in advance of an
increase in the volume of business, with no assurance that the volume of business will
increase. Continued growth could also strain our ability to maintain reliable service
levels for our customers, develop and improve our operational, financial and
management controls, enhance our reporting systems and procedures and recruit,
train and retain highly skilled personnel. Managing our growth will require significant
expenditures and allocation of valuable management resources. If we fail to achieve
the necessary level of efficiency in our organization as it grows, our business,
operating results and financial condition will be harmed.

We are subject to a wide variety of laws, regulations and government policies that may
change in significant ways.

The recent regulatory changes in our industry made it possible for us to adopt and
grow a direct-to-consumer (DTC) business model in Virginia. However, there can be
no assurance that laws, regulations and policies will not be changed in ways that will
require us to modify our business models and objectives or affect our returns on



investments by restricting existing activities and products, subjecting them to
escalating costs or prohibiting them outright. In addition, our proposed expansion of
our business to other states will be restricted by the DTC legislation in other states.
Continued government scrutiny may impact the requirements for marketing our
products and slow our ability to introduce new products, resulting in an adverse
impact on our business.

Our operations might be adversely affected by the occurrence of a natural disaster,
pandemic or other catastrophic event.

We depend on our principal facilities for the continued operation of our business.
Although we have contingency plans in effect for natural disasters or other
catastrophic events, these events, including pandemics, terrorist attacks and natural
disasters such as hurricanes and earthquakes could disrupt our facilities and adversely
affect our operations. Even though we carry business interruption insurance policies
and typically have provisions in our contracts that protect us in certain events, we
might suffer losses as a result of business interruptions that exceed the coverage
available under the insurance policies or for which we do not have coverage. Any
natural disaster or catastrophic event affecting us could have a significant negative
impact on our operations.

Management has broad discretion in the use of the proceeds of the Offering and may
apply these proceeds to uses that do not increase our revenues or market value.

We expect to spend the net cash proceeds of our Offering as set forth in the
Agreement. The amounts we intend to spend in each area may not match the actual
expenses in any of these areas or the timing of these expenditures. Management will
have broad discretion in the use of the net proceeds from the Offering. Because of the
number and variability of factors that determine our use of proceeds from the
Offering, there can be no assurance that the uses will not vary from current intentions.

The transfer of the Securities is strictly limited by law and under the terms of the Loan
Documents and any then-existing governing documents.

There is no public market for the Securities, and we do not expect such a market will
develop in the foreseeable future. For these reasons, prospective Purchasers should be
fully aware of the potential long-term nature of an investment in us, and should not
expect to be able to readily liquidate their investment in the Securities. The Securities
will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities
Act”), or under any state securities law and are being offered in reliance on an
exemption from the registration provisions of the Securities Act and state securities
laws applicable to private placements of securities. In addition, we do not intend to
make public information available that would allow the resale of the Securities under
Rule 144 under the Securities Act. Prospective Purchasers will be required to
represent in writing in the Agreement that they are purchasing the Securities for their
own account for long term investment and not with a view to resale or distribution
thereof and also that they agree that the Securities will not be resold without
registration under the Securities Act or an exemption therefrom and compliance with
any applicable state securities laws. To the extent the Securities are certificated, a
legend will be placed on all instruments or certificates evidencing the Securities



stating that the Securities have not been registered under the Securities Act or any
state securities laws and setting forth or otherwise referring to the limitations on
transferability contained in the Loan Documents any then-existing governing
documents and under applicable law.

Additional issuances of Equity Securities do not require the consent of the Note
holders and will dilute their ownership percentage upon conversion of the Notes.

On approval of our Board and without any consent of the Purchasers, we may issue
additional Equity Securities for such consideration as our Board deems appropriate.
On the issuance of such additional Equity Securities, the ownership percentage of our
existing equity holders (and the as-converted ownership percentage of the holders of
our Notes) will be diluted. Currently our Board is authorized to issue incentive equity
to our employees, members of our Board, consultants and strategic partners on terms
and conditions to be established by our Board, and such pool may be increased from
time to time.

Our governing documents provide for indemnification of our Board, officers and
certain other persons.

Our governing documents provide for indemnification of members of our Board,
officers, employees or agents if certain applicable standards of conduct are met.

There can be no assurance that adequate proceeds will be received on liquidation.
In the event of our liquidation, the proceeds realized from such liquidation may not be
sufficient to repay the Notes and other indebtedness.

The terms of the Notes may not represent fair market terms.

The interest rate, repayment provisions, conversion rights and other aspects of this
Offering were determined by us without reference to traditional criteria for
determining their market terms, because such terms are not generally available to
companies with a limited history of operations. The terms were established to enable
us to raise the target gross proceeds in the Offering through the sale of the Notes.
Because this Offering is a nonpublic offering and, as such, is not registered under
federal or state securities laws, prospective Purchasers will not have the benefit of
review by the SEC or any state securities regulatory authority.

We intend to retain all of our earnings for the future operation and expansion of our
business and do not anticipate paying any cash distributions in the foreseeable future.
The payment of cash distributions, if any, is subject to the discretion of our Board and
will depend on the results of our operations, financial position, capital requirements,
general business conditions, restrictions imposed by financing arrangements, legal
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of distributions and other factors our
Board deems relevant.

Product Acceptance Risk

QOur success depends on achieving significant sales and acceptance of our products in
the marketplace. If any of our products fails to gain such acceptance or becomes
unprofitable, we may choose to eliminate it from our portfolio. The elimination of any
product could result in significant write-offs and other expenses, which could



adversely impact our business, financial condition, and results of operations.
Additionally, the market perception of our ability to offer a diverse and successful
product line could be damaged, further impacting our competitive standing and
potential for growth.

Risk of Inadequate Financing

QOur plans to build out and launch our tasting room are contingent upon raising
sufficient capital, both from this offering and potentially from future financings.
There is no guarantee that we will be able to secure the necessary funding on
acceptable terms, or at all. Even if we do achieve our capital goals in this campaign,
unforeseen costs, delays, or other challenges may require more funding than
anticipated, potentially jeopardizing the tasting room project. Failure to launch our
tasting room as planned could significantly harm our growth prospects and overall
business strategy.

Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc. has outstanding tax liens with the states of Indiana,
Florida, and New York.

The aggregate total of these tax liens is $5,293. Belle Isle is in the process of working
with these states to resolve the outstanding tax liens.

Regulatory Bodies

One potential risk to our business pertains to our relationship with regulatory bodies,
specifically the Virginia Alcoholic Beverage Control Authority (VA ABC), under whose
stringent governance our operations fall. In 2023, we experienced a delay in remitting
payments to the VA ABC, resulting in a temporary suspension of our tasting room
operations for several weeks while an audit was conducted. This pause significantly
disrupted our sales and tasting activities, creating a tangible impact on our business.
With that said, we were still able to produce, sell to the VA ABC and various
distributors, and ship outside of the state of Virginia. We have since addressed this
lapse and streamlined our payment processes. However, the episode has underscored
the risk of potential operational interruptions due to procedural oversights. Future
instances of a similar nature could negatively impact our revenue and operational
continuity. Potential investors should factor this into their appraisal of our company's
risk profile.

The Company may undergo a future change that could affect yvour investment

The Company may change its business, management or advisory team, IP portfolio,
location of its principal place of business or production facilities, or other change
which may result in adverse effects on vour investment. Additionally, the Company
may alter its corporate structure through a merger, acquisition, consolidation, or
other restructuring of its current corporate entity structure. Should such a future
change occur, it would be based on management’s review and determination that it is
in the best interests of the Company.



Ownership and Capital Structure; Rights of the Securities

Ownership

The following table sets forth information regarding beneficial ownership of the
company’s holders of 20% or more of any class of voting securities as of the date of
this Offering Statement filing.

Stockholder Name Number of Securities Owned| Type of Security Owned [Percentage
Michael Malloy  |335,482 Series B Preferred Stock

Michael Malloy  [11,401 Series A-2 Preferred Stock|20.26%
Michael Malloy  |4,759 Series A-3 Preferred Stock

The Company's Securities

The Company has authorized Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2
Preferred Stock, Series A-3 Preferred Stock, Series B Preferred Stock, Convertible

Promissory Note Series 2023 - CF, and Convertible Promissory Note Series April 2023,
Common Stock

The amount of security authorized is 2,500,000 with a total of 164,300 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

There are no material rights associated with Common Stock.
Series A-1 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 50,000 with a total of 50,000 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

Liquidiation Preference:

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of
shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payvment shall be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred,
Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an
amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one times (1x) the Series B Original Issue
Price (as defined below) together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and




(b) such amount per share of Series B Preferred as would have been pavable had all
shares of Series B Preferred been converted into Common Stock pursuant to Section
B.2 of Article IV immediately prior to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable
pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation
Amount™). If upon any such Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available
for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of
Series B Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section
B.1(a) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in
any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective
amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon
such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in
full. The “Series B Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B
Preferred subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock
split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.

(b) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series
B Liquidation Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the
purpose of this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to
be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original
Issue Price together with anvy dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount
payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-1
Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-2 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-2 Liquidation Amount”); and (iii) with
respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-3 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3
Liquidation Amount”). If upon any such Liguidation Event the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay
the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3
Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(b) of
Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the
assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would
otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series A-1
Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred, the
“Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per share for the Series A-2
Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean $21.01 per share for the
Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the



Preferred Stock,

(c) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the payment in full of the
Series B Liguidation Amount, the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2
Liquidation Amount and the Series A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed
among the holders of shares of Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred, pro rata based on the number of shares held by
each such holder, treating for this purpose all such securities as if they had been
converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation immediately prior to such Liquidation Event.

(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting together as a separate class (which
majority includes the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred, voting as a

separate class) (the “Preferred Majority™), in any specific instance a "Liquidation
Event” shall mean any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to
include:

(i) a sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);

(i1) any merger, consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by
means of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without
limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger
or consolidation), except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger,
consolidation or reorganization, the holders of Corporation’s outstanding capital stock
(on a fully-diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or
reorganization or their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger,
consolidation or reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power
of Corporation or the surviving corporation, as the case may be;

(i1i) any sale or series of sales of shares of Corporation’s capital stock by the holders
thereof which results in any person or group of affiliated persons (other than the
current owners of Corporation's capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority
of the voting power of Corporation; or

(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation; except that the
consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a merger effected
exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by the Corporation
of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing transactions, or
in a Qualified Public Offering (as defined below), shall not be deemed a Liquidation



Event for this purpose.

(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be
distributed in a form other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value as
determined in any acquisition agreement between the Corporation and the acquiring
party, and if there is no such agreement, then in good faith by the Board of Directors.
Any securities to be delivered to the holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock,
as the case may be, shall be valued as follows:

(i) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global Market System
(or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital Market, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such
exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(i1) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed to be the average of
the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the thirty (30) day period
ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(iii) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof,
as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors; and

(iv) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter or other
restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a
shareholder's status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate
level to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors.

(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written notice of
an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders’' meeting called to approve such transaction,
or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The
first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending
transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than thirty
(30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for herein or sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened or waived
entirely upon the Corporation’s receipt of written consent of the holders of Preferred
Majority.

Conversion: Each share of the Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into
one share of Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of
the Corporation's sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, with ageregate gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least
$25,000,000 before deduction of underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like
(a "Qualified Public Offering™), and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.



Series A-2 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 71,255 with a total of 71,255 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

Liquidiation Preference:

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of
shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payment shall be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred,
Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an
amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one times (1x) the Series B Original Issue
Price (as defined below) together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and
(b) such amount per share of Series B Preferred as would have been payable had all
shares of Series B Preferred been converted into Common Stock pursuant to Section
B.2 of Article IV immediately prior to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable
pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation
Amount™). If upon any such Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available
for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of
Series B Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section
B.1(a) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in
any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective
amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon
such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in
full. The “Series B Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B
Preferred subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock
split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.

(b) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series
B Liquidation Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the
purpose of this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to
be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original
[ssue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount
payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-1
Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-2 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-2 Liquidation Amount™); and (iii) with



respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-3 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3
Liquidation Amount™). If upon any such Liquidation Event the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay
the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3
Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(b) of
Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the
assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would
otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series A-1
Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred, the
“Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per share for the Series A-2
Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean $21.01 per share for the
Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the
Preferred Stock.

(c) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the payment in full of the
Series B Liguidation Amount, the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2
Liquidation Amount and the Series A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed
among the holders of shares of Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred, pro rata based on the number of shares held by
each such holder, treating for this purpose all such securities as if they had been
converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation immediately prior to such Liquidation Event.

(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting together as a separate class (which
majority includes the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred, voting as a

separate class) (the “Preferred Majority™), in any specific instance a "Liquidation
Event” shall mean any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to
include:

(1) a sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);

(i) any merger, consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by
means of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without
limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger



or consolidation), except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger,
consolidation or reorganization, the holders of Corporation’s outstanding capital stock
(on a fully-diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or
reorganization or their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger,
consolidation or reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power
of Corporation or the surviving corporation, as the case may be;

(i1i) any sale or series of sales of shares of Corporation’s capital stock by the holders
thereof which results in any person or group of affiliated persons (other than the
current owners of Corporation's capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority
of the voting power of Corporation; or

(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation; except that the
consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a merger effected
exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by the Corporation
of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing transactions, or
in a Qualified Public Otffering (as defined below), shall not be deemed a Liquidation
Event for this purpose.

(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be
distributed in a form other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value as
determined in any acquisition agreement between the Corporation and the acquiring
party, and if there is no such agreement, then in good faith by the Board of Directors.
Any securities to be delivered to the holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock,
as the case may be, shall be valued as follows:

(1) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global Market System
(or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital Market, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such
exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(ii) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed to be the average of
the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the thirty (30) day period
ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(i1i) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof,
as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors; and

(iv) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter or other
restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a
shareholder's status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate
level to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors.

(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written notice of
an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction,



or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The
first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending
transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than thirty
(30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for herein or sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened or waived
entirely upon the Corporation’s receipt of written consent of the holders of Preferred
Majority.

Conversion: Each share of the Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into
one share of Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of
the Corporation's sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, with aggregate gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least
$25,000,000 before deduction of underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like
(a "Qualified Public Offering”), and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.

Series A-3 Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 95,899 with a total of 95,903 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

Liquidiation Preference:

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of
shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payment shall be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred,
Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an
amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one times (1x) the Series B Original Issue
Price (as defined below) together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and
(b) such amount per share of Series B Preferred as would have been payable had all
shares of Series B Preferred been converted into Commeon Stock pursuant to Section
B.2 of Article IV immediately prior to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable
pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation
Amount™). If upon any such Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available
for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of
Series B Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section
B.1(a) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in
any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective
amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon



such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in
full. The “Series B Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B
Preferred subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock
split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.

(b) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series
B Liguidation Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the
purpose of this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to
be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original
[ssue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount
payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-1
Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-2 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-2 Liquidation Amount™); and (iii) with
respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-3 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3
Liquidation Amount”). If upon any such Liquidation Event the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay
the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3
Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(b) of
Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the
assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would
otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series A-1
Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred, the
“Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per share for the Series A-2
Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean $21.01 per share for the
Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the
Preferred Stock.

(c) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the payment in full of the
Series B Liguidation Amount, the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2
Liquidation Amount and the Series A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed
among the holders of shares of Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred, pro rata based on the number of shares held by
each such holder, treating for this purpose all such securities as if they had been
converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation immediately prior to such Liquidation Event.



(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting together as a separate class (which
majority includes the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred, voting as a

separate class) (the “Preferred Majority™), in any specific instance a "Liquidation
Event” shall mean any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to
include:

(i) a sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);

(i) any merger, consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by
means of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without
limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger
or consolidation), except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger,
consolidation or reorganization, the holders of Corporation's outstanding capital stock
(on a fully-diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or
reorganization or their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger,
consolidation or reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power
of Corporation or the surviving corporation, as the case may be;

(iii) any sale or series of sales of shares of Corporation’s capital stock by the holders
thereof which results in any person or group of atfiliated persons (other than the
current owners of Corporation’s capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority
of the voting power of Corporation; or

(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation; except that the
consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a merger effected
exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by the Corporation
of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing transactions, or
in a Qualified Public Offering (as defined below), shall not be deemed a Liquidation
Event for this purpose.

(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be
distributed in a form other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value as
determined in any acquisition agreement between the Corporation and the acquiring
party, and if there is no such agreement, then in good faith by the Board of Directors.
Any securities to be delivered to the holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock,
as the case may be, shall be valued as follows:

(1) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global Market System
(or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital Market, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such



exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(ii) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed to be the average of
the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the thirty (30) day period
ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(ii1) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof,
as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors; and

(iv) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter or other
restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a
shareholder's status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate
level to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors.

(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written notice of
an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction,
or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The
first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending

transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than thirty
(30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for herein or sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened or waived
entirely upon the Corporation’s receipt of written consent of the holders of Preferred
Majority.

Conversion: Each share of the Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into
one share of Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of
the Corporation's sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, with aggregate gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least
$25,000,000 before deduction of underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like
(a "Qualified Public Offering™), and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.

Series B Preferred Stock

The amount of security authorized is 560,377 with a total of 398,887 outstanding.
Voting Rights

1 vote per share.
Material Rights

Liquidiation Preference:



(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of
shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payment shall be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred,
Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an
amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one times (1x) the Series B Original Issue
Price (as defined below) together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and
(b) such amount per share of Series B Preferred as would have been payable had all
shares of Series B Preferred been converted into Common Stock pursuant to Section
B.2 of Article IV immediately prior to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable
pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation
Amount”). If upon any such Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available
for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of
Series B Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section
B.1(a) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in
any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective
amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon
such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in
full. The “Series B Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B
Preferred subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock
split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.

(b) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series
B Liguidation Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the
purpose of this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to
be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original
Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount
payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the "Series A-1
Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-2 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount pavable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-2 Liquidation Amount”); and (iii) with
respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-3 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3
Liquidation Amount”). If upon any such Liquidation Event the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay
the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3
Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(b) of
Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the
assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would



otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series A-1
Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred, the
“Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per share for the Series A-2
Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean $21.01 per share for the
Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the
Preferred Stock.

(¢) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the payment in full of the
Series B Liquidation Amount, the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2
Liquidation Amount and the Series A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed
among the holders of shares of Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-5 Preferred, pro rata based on the number of shares held by
each such holder, treating for this purpose all such securities as if they had been
converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation immediately prior to such Liquidation Event.

(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting together as a separate class (which
majority includes the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred, voting as a

separate class) (the “Preferred Majority™), in any specific instance a "Liquidation
Event” shall mean any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to
include:

(i) a sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);

(ii) any merger, consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by
means of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without
limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger
or consolidation), except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger,
consolidation or reorganization, the holders of Corporation's outstanding capital stock
(on a fully-diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or
reorganization or their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger,
consolidation or reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power
of Corporation or the surviving corporation, as the case may be;

(iii) any sale or series of sales of shares of Corporation’s capital stock by the holders
thereof which results in any person or group of affiliated persons (other than the
current owners of Corporation’s capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority



of the voting power of Corporation; or

(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation; except that the
consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a merger effected
exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by the Corporation
of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing transactions, or
in a Qualified Public Offering (as defined below), shall not be deemed a Liquidation
Event for this purpose.

(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be
distributed in a form other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value as
determined in any acquisition agreement between the Corporation and the acquiring
party, and if there is no such agreement, then in good faith by the Board of Directors.
Any securities to be delivered to the holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock,
as the case may be, shall be valued as follows:

(1) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global Market System
(or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital Market, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such
exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(ii) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed to be the average of
the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the thirty (30) day period
ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(iii) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof,
as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors; and

(iv) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter or other
restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a
shareholder's status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate
level to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors.

(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written notice of
an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction,
or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The
first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending
transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than thirty
(30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for herein or sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened or waived
entirely upon the Corporation’s receipt of written consent of the holders of Preferred
Majority.



Conversion: Each share of the Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into
one share of Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of
the Corporation's sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, with aggregate gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least
$25,000,000 before deduction of underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like
(a "Qualified Public Offering”), and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.

Convertible Promissory Note Series 2025 - CF

The security will convert into Series b preferred stock and the terms of the Convertible
Promissory Note Series 2023 - CF are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $0.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2027

Interest Rate: 8.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Qualified equity financing or automatic conversion on Maturity
Date

Material Rights

Please see Exhibit F of the Offering Memorandum for a complete list of the material
terms for the Convertible Note.

Conversion; Repayment Premium Upon Sale of the Company.

(a) Automatic Conversion Upon Qualified Financing. In the event that a Qualified
Financing (as defined below) occurs prior to the Maturity Date or a Sale of the
Company, then the outstanding principal balance of this Note, together with all
accrued and unpaid interest thereon, shall automatically convert in whole without any
further action by the Holder into such Equity Securities at a conversion price equal to
the lesser of (i) 80% of the per share price paid by the purchasers of such Equity
Securities in the Qualified Financing and (i1) (A) $21.10 per share if a Qualified
Financing occurs on or before December 31, 2023, (B) $18.09 per share if a Qualified
Financing occurs after December 31, 2023 and on or before December 31, 2024, or (C)
$15.07 per share if a Qualified Financing occurs after December 31, 2024 and on or
betore December 31, 2027 (subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the
capital stock of the Company), and otherwise on the same terms and conditions as
given to the purchasers of the Equity Securities in such Qualified Financing.

(b) Automatic Conversion Upon Maturity Date. In the event that a Qualified Financing
or a Sale of the Company is not consummated prior to the Maturity Date, then
effective upon the Maturity Date, the outstanding principal balance and any unpaid
accrued interest under this Note and each of the other Notes shall be automatically
converted into Series B Preferred Stock of the Company at a conversion price equal to



$15.07 per share (subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend,
stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the capital
stock of the Company).

(c) Repayment Premium Upon Sale of the Company. Notwithstanding any provision of
this Note to the contrary, in the event that the Company consummates a Sale of the
Company (as defined below) prior to the conversion or repayment in full of this Note,
(i) the Company will give the Holder at least fifteen (15) days prior written notice of
the anticipated closing date of such Sale of the Company, and (ii) at the closing of such
Sale of the Company, in lieu of the principal and interest that would otherwise be
payable under this Note, the Company will pay to the Holder, in full satisfaction of the
Company’s obligations under this Note, an aggregate amount equal to the greater of
(%) 5 times the aggregate amount of principal and unpaid interest then outstanding
under this Note and (y) the amount the Holder of this Note would have received in the
Sale of the Company if the Holder had converted the amount of principal and unpaid
interest outstanding under this Note into Series B Preferred Stock at a conversion
price equal to (A) $21.10 per share if a Sale of the Company occurs on or before
December 31, 2023, (B) $18.09 per share if a Sale of the Company occurs after
December 31, 2025 and on or before December 31, 2024, or (C) $15.07 per share if a
Sale of the Company occurs after December 31, 2024 and on or before December 31,
2027 (subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock split,
combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the capital stock of the
Company).

Convertible Promissory Note Series April 2023

The security will convert into Series b preferred stock and the terms of the Convertible
Promissory Note Series April 2023 are outlined below:

Amount outstanding: $1,654,763.00

Maturity Date: December 31, 2027

Interest Rate: 8.0%

Discount Rate: 20.0%

Valuation Cap: None

Conversion Trigger: Qualified equity financing or automatic conversion on Maturity
Date

Material Rights
Series B Preferred Stock Material Information
Liquidiation Preference:

(a) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event (as defined below), the holders of
shares of Series B Preferred then outstanding shall be entitled to be paid out of the
assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders before any
payvment shall be made to the holders of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred,
Series A-3 Preferred or Common Stock by reason of their ownership thereof, an



amount per share equal to the greater of (a) one times (1x) the Series B Original Issue
Price (as defined below) together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon, and
(b) such amount per share of Series B Preferred as would have been payable had all
shares of Series B Preferred been converted into Common Stock pursuant to Section
B.2 of Article IV immediately prior to such Liquidation Event (the amount payable
pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series B Liquidation
Amount”). If upon any such Liquidation Event, the assets of the Corporation available
for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay the holders of shares of
Series B Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section
B.1(a) of Article IV, the holders of shares of Series B Preferred shall share ratably in
any distribution of the assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective
amounts which would otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon
such distribution if all amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in
full. The “Series B Original Issue Price” shall mean $30.14781 per share of Series B
Preferred subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock dividend, stock
split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the Preferred Stock.

(b) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the full payment of the Series
B Liguidation Amount, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred then outstanding, treated as a single class for the
purpose of this Section B.1(b) of Article IV, shall (on a pari passu basis) be entitled to
be paid out of the assets of the Corporation available for distribution to its
shareholders before any payment shall be made to the holders of Common Stock by
reason of their ownership thereof, an amount per share equal to: (i) with respect to the
Series A-1 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-1 Original
Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount
payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-1
Liquidation Amount™); (ii) with respect to the Series A-2 Preferred Stock, one and
four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series A-2 Original Issue Price together with any
dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the amount payable pursuant to this sentence
is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-2 Liquidation Amount”); and (iii) with
respect to the Series A-3 Preferred Stock, one and four-tenths times (1.4x) the Series
A-3 Original Issue Price together with any dividends declared but unpaid thereon (the
amount payable pursuant to this sentence is hereinafter referred to as the “Series A-3
Liquidation Amount™). If upon any such Liquidation Event the assets of the
Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be insufficient to pay
the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2 Preferred and Series A-3
Preferred the full amount to which they shall be entitled under this Section B.1(b) of
Article IV, the holders of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Series A-2 Preferred
Stock and Series A-3 Preferred Stock shall share ratably in any distribution of the
assets available for distribution in proportion to the respective amounts which would
otherwise be payable in respect of the shares held by them upon such distribution if all
amounts payable on or with respect to such shares were paid in full. The “Series A-1
Original Issue Price” shall mean $10.00 per share for the Series A-1 Preferred, the
“Series A-2 Original Issue Price” shall mean $17.54 per share for the Series A-2
Preferred, and the “Series A-3 Original Issue Price” shall mean $21.01 per share for the



Series A-3 Preferred each subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any stock
dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the
Preferred Stock.

(c) Upon the occurrence of any Liquidation Event, after the payment in full of the
Series B Liquidation Amount, the Series A-1 Liquidation Amount, the Series A-2
Liquidation Amount and the Series A-3 Liquidation Amount, the remaining assets of
the Corporation available for distribution to its shareholders shall be distributed
among the holders of shares of Common Stock, Series A-1 Preferred, Series A-2
Preferred and Series A-3 Preferred, pro rata based on the number of shares held by
each such holder, treating for this purpose all such securities as if they had been
converted to Common Stock pursuant to the terms of this Amended and Restated
Articles of Incorporation immediately prior to such Liquidation Event.

(d) Unless waived in any specific instance by the holders of at least a majority of the
outstanding shares of Preferred Stock, voting together as a separate class (which
majority includes the holders of a majority of the Series B Preferred, voting as a

separate class) (the “Preferred Majority™), in any specific instance a "Liquidation
Event” shall mean any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Corporation,
either voluntary or involuntary, and shall be deemed to be occasioned by, or to
include:

(i) a sale or transfer of all or substantially all of the assets of the Corporation in any
transaction or series of related transactions (including, without limitation, any sale,
lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or substantially all of the
Corporation's assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger or consolidation);

(i1) any merger, consolidation or reorganization to which Corporation is a party, by
means of any transaction or series of related transactions (including, without
limitation, any sale, lease, transfer, exclusive license or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the Corporation’s assets, stock acquisition, reorganization, merger
or consolidation), except for a merger, consolidation or reorganization in which
Corporation is the surviving corporation or after giving effect to such merger,
consolidation or reorganization, the holders of Corporation's outstanding capital stock
(on a fully-diluted basis) immediately prior to the merger, consolidation or
reorganization or their affiliates will own, immediately following the merger,
consolidation or reorganization, capital stock holding a majority of the voting power
of Corporation or the surviving corporation, as the case may be;

(i1i) any sale or series of sales of shares of Corporation’s capital stock by the holders
thereof which results in any person or group of affiliated persons (other than the
current owners of Corporation's capital stock) owning capital stock holding a majority
of the voting power of Corporation; or

(iv) any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of Corporation; except that the
consolidation with a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Corporation, or a merger effected
exclusively to change the domicile of the Corporation, or the sale by the Corporation



of shares of its capital stock to investors in bona fide equity financing transactions, or
in a Qualified Public Offering (as defined below), shall not be deemed a Liquidation
Event for this purpose.

(e) If any of the assets of the Corporation as a result of a Liquidation Event are to be
distributed in a form other than cash, its value will be deemed its fair market value as
determined in any acquisition agreement between the Corporation and the acquiring
party, and if there is no such agreement, then in good faith by the Board of Directors.
Any securities to be delivered to the holders of the Preferred Stock or Common Stock,
as the case may be, shall be valued as follows:

(i) If traded on a securities exchange or through the NASDAQ Global Market System
(or a similar national quotation system) or the NASDAQ Capital Market, the value
shall be deemed to be the average of the closing prices of the securities on such
exchange over the ten (10) day period ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(i1) If actively traded over-the-counter, the value shall be deemed to be the average of
the closing bid or sale prices (whichever is applicable) over the thirty (30) day period
ending three (3) days prior to the closing;

(iii) If there is no active public market, the value shall be the fair market value thereof,
as determined in good faith by the Board of Directors; and

(iv) The method of valuation of securities subject to investment letter or other
restrictions on free marketability (other than restrictions arising solely by virtue of a
shareholder's status as an affiliate or former affiliate) shall be valued at an appropriate
level to reflect the approximate fair market value thereof, as determined in good faith
by the Board of Directors.

(f) The Corporation shall give each holder of record of Preferred Stock written notice of
an impending transaction that would constitute a Liquidation Event not later than
thirty (30) days prior to the shareholders’ meeting called to approve such transaction,
or thirty (30) days prior to the closing of such transaction, whichever is earlier, and
shall also notify such holder in writing of the final approval of such transaction. The
first of such notices shall describe the material terms and conditions of the impending
transaction, and the Corporation shall thereafter give such holder prompt notice of
any material changes. The transaction shall in no event take place sooner than thirty
(30) days after the Corporation has given the first notice provided for herein or sooner
than thirty (30) days after the Corporation has given notice of any material changes
provided for herein; provided, however, that such periods may be shortened or waived
entirely upon the Corporation’s receipt of written consent of the holders of Preferred
Majority.

Conversion: Each share of the Preferred Stock shall automatically be converted into
one share of Common Stock upon the earlier of (i) immediately prior to the closing of
the Corporation's sale of its Common Stock in a firm commitment underwritten public
offering pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended, with ageregate gross proceeds to the Corporation of at least



$25,000,000 before deduction of underwriting discounts, registration fees and the like
(a "Qualified Public Offering”), and (ii) upon the vote of the Preferred Majority.

What it means to be a minority holder

As a convertible noteholder of the company, you will have no voting rights. Even upon
conversion of the notes, you will have limited rights in regards to the corporate
actions of the company, including additional issuances of securities, company
repurchases of securities, a sale of the company or its significant assets, or company
transactions with related parties. Further, investors in this offering may have rights
less than those of other investors and will have limited influence on the corporate
actions of the company.

Dilution

Investors should understand the potential for dilution. The investor’s stake in a
company could be diluted due to the company issuing additional shares. In other
words, when the company issues more shares, the percentage of the company that you
own will go down, even though the value of the company may go up. You will own a
smaller piece of a larger company. This increase in number of shares outstanding
could result from a stock offering (such as an initial public offering, another
crowdfunding round, a venture capital round, angel investment), employees
exercising stock options, or by conversion of certain instruments (e.g. convertible
bonds, preferred shares or warrants) into stock. If the company decides to issue more
shares, an investor could experience value dilution, with each share being worth less
than before, and control dilution, with the total percentage an investor owns being
less than before. There may also be earnings dilution, with a reduction in the amount
earned per share (though this typically occurs only if the company offers dividends,
and most early stage companies are unlikely to offer dividends, preferring to invest
any earnings into the company).

Transferability of securities

For a year, the securities can only be resold:
e |nanIPO;
¢ To the company;
¢ To an accredited investor; and

¢ To a member of the family of the purchaser or the equivalent, to a trust
controlled by the purchaser, to a trust created for the benefit of a member of the
family of the purchaser or the equivalent, or in connection with the death or
divorce of the purchaser or other similar circumstance.

Recent Offerings of Securities



We have made the following issuances of securities within the last three years:

e Type of security sold: Convertible Note
Final amount sold: $1,654,763.00
Use of proceeds: Marketing, New Hires, Debt, Working Capital, Tasting Room
Date: April 11, 2023
Offering exemption relied upon: 506(b)

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Financial Condition

You should read the following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and
results of our operations together with our financial statements and related notes
appearing at the end of this Offering Memorandum. This discussion contains forward-
looking statements reflecting our current expectations that involve risks and
uncertainties. Actual results and the timing of events may differ materially from those
contained in these forward-looking statements due to a number of factors, including
those discussed in the section entitled “Risk Factors” and elsewhere in this Offering
Memorandum.

Results of Operations

Circumstances which led to the performance of financial statements:

Revenue

Revenue for fiscal year 2021 was $1,264,000 compared to $1,336,465 in fiscal year
2022.

QOur revenue rose by approximately 6% to $1,336,465, from $1,264,000 in the previous

fiscal year. This strong financial performance was underscored by an 8% growth in the
fourth quarter compared to the same period in 2021, with December 2022 achieving an
impressive 20% increase over December 2021.

The growth was primarily driven by a 16% year-over-year expansion in our standard

distribution channel. This robust increase was led by our successful partnership with
the VA ABC, supplemented by the sustained growth of our canned cocktail business

across grocery and specialty stores.

Furthermore, our direct-to-restaurant business experienced a significant upswing,
with a 34% growth compared to 2021. This showcases our diverse and scalable revenue
streams, and our ability to adapt to changing market dynamics.

We're optimistic about the future, as we continue to leverage these promising trends
and explore innovative strategies to further enhance our growth potential.



Cost of sales

Cost of Sales for fiscal year 2021 was $703,603 compared to $785,444 in fiscal year
2022.

In 2022, our cost of sales increased by around $82,000 to reach $785,444, up from
$703,603 in the previous fiscal year. This rise is attributable to a combination of
factors that are reflective of our successful growth strategies and evolving market
conditions.

Firstly, the increase in sales volume, which is a positive indicator of our expanding
customer base and market reach, naturally led to an elevated cost of sales.
Additionally, certain macroeconomic factors contributed to this rise. These include
increased freight and shipping costs, which is an industry-wide challenge, and
heightened ingredient costs for several of our products.

The continued success and growing popularity of our canned cocktails also played a
part in the cost increase. While these products have a lower margin, their high sales
volume contributes significantly to our overall market presence.

In light of these factors, we are continuously working on optimizing our cost
structures and exploring avenues for improving operational efficiencies. We remain
committed to delivering quality products to our consumers and value to our investors.

Gross margins

Gross margins for fiscal vear 2021 were $560,404 compared to $551,021 in fiscal year
2022,

As I mentioned in the previous section, our 2022 cost of sales saw an increase to
$785,444, up from $703,603 in 2021, which in turn negatively impacted margins. This
surge was primarily due to industry-wide elevated freight and shipping costs, and
higher ingredient costs. Notably, the success of our lower margin, high volume canned
cocktails also contributed to this rise. Despite these challenges, we're focused on
enhancing operational efficiencies and maintaining our commitment to delivering
quality products and shareholder value.

Expenses

Expenses for fiscal year 2021 were $1,144,138 compared to $1,410,715 in fiscal year
2022,

The company's expenditure portfolio encompasses a variety of elements, including
compensation and benefits, marketing and sales expenses, professional service fees,
and occupancy expenses. In 2022, we observed an increase of $266,577 in our total
expenses compared to 2021. Around $110,000 of this escalation can be attributed to
professional fees that were necessary for our capital raise. As part of our strategic
growth plan, we also invested in our human resources, onboarding key personnel in
both marketing and production. These new hires are a crucial part of our strategy to



drive further growth and innovation.
Historical results and cash flows:

The Company is currently in the growth stage and revenue-generating stage. We are
of the opinion that the historical cash flows will not be indicative of the revenue and
cash flows expected for the future because we have implemented several new
strategies designed to significantly expand our revenue streams. Past cash was
primarily generated through sales of our initial product offerings and equity
investments from our initial round of fundraising.

Our goal is to increase our cash flows substantially over the coming years through a
combination of the following strategic initiatives:

1. Opening a new tasting room, which will not only increase direct sales but also boost
our brand's visibility and customer engagement.

2. Investing in our direct-to-consumer online business to tap into the rapidly growing
e-commerce market and reach a broader customer base.

3. Expanding our distribution both within and outside our home state, thereby
increasing our potential market.

4. Launching product line extensions like our new Bourbon offering, which will
diversify our product portfolio and attract a wider range of consumers.

5. Establishing a celebrity partnership, which will enhance our brand's credibility and
appeal, leading to increased customer interest and sales.

Given these significant changes in our business strategy, we believe the Company’s
historical cash flows are not representative of what is to be expected in the future.
Each of these initiatives opens up new revenue streams, leading us to anticipate a
substantial increase in our future cash flows compared to our historical figures.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

What capital resources are currently available to the Company? (Cash on hand,
existing lines of credit, shareholder loans, etc...)

As of the start of Q2 2025, the Company has capital resources available in the form of
$50,000 cash, $128,000 in accounts receivable, $100,000 line of credit from Shopify
Capital, and $52,000 ERTC grant approved.

How do the funds of this campaign factor into your financial resources? (Are these
funds critical to your company operations? Or do you have other funds or capital
resources available?)

We believe the funds of this campaign are critical to our company operations. These



funds are required to support working capital, marketing, payables, new hires, tasting
room, and new product efforts.

Are the funds from this campaign necessary to the viability of the company? (Of the
total funds that your company has, how much of that will be made up of funds raised
from the crowdfunding campaign?)

We believe the funds from this campaign are necessary to the viability of the
Company. Of the total funds that our Company has, a large portion will be made up of
funds raised from the crowdfunding campaign, if it raises its maximum funding goal.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your minimum? What
expenses is this estimate based on?

If the Company raises the minimum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate into Q1 2024. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$71,500 for total combined cost of sales, product innovation, and operating expenses
in excess of revenue.

How long will you be able to operate the company if you raise your maximum funding
goal?

If the Company raises the maximum offering amount, we anticipate the Company will
be able to operate into Q1 2025. This is based on a current monthly burn rate of
$83,300 for expenses related to increased marketing, sales, production innovation,
tasting room build out, operating, and personnel expenses in excess of revenue.

We anticipate needing approximately $1.4m to achieve operational profitability
pending successful execution of our strategy.

Are there any additional future sources of capital available to your company?
(Required capital contributions, lines of credit, contemplated future capital raises,
etc...)

Currently, the Company has contemplated additional future sources of capital
including additional raises on Start Engine, if successful, along with potential
investment from strategic and non-strategic partners.

Indebtedness

e Creditor: Loan - Currency Capital, LLC
Amount Owed: $13,133.00
Interest Rate: 21.82%



Maturity Date: January 26, 2024

Creditor: Loan - Frank Jenkins
Amount Owed: $163,788.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

Creditor: Loan - Mike Donahue
Amount Owed: $7,236.00

Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Creditor: Loan - Catherine Russo

Amount Owed: $1,390.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Creditor: Shopify Capital Advance
Amount Owed: $72,997.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Creditor: North Star Lease Back
Amount Owed: $138,498.00
Interest Rate: 18.64%

Maturity Date: December 10, 2027

Creditor: SBAD TREAS LOAN
Amount Owed: $499,900.00
Interest Rate: 3.75%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2050

Creditor: Village Bank PPP2
Amount Owed: $150,357.00
Interest Rate: 1.0%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2023

Creditor: Promissory Note - Adams, Jenkins & Cheatham
Amount Owed: $24,752.00

Interest Rate: 2.5%

Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

Creditor: Promissory Note - Adams, Jenkins & Cheatham
Amount Owed: $53,380.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%

Maturity Date: January 31, 2025



e Creditor: Promissory Note - Brandito

Amount Owed: $57,975.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 51, 2024

e Creditor: Promissory Note - Iron Heart Canning Co
Amount Owed: $49,543.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

e Creditor: Promissory Note - Liquor Bottle Packaging International
Amount Owed: $20,598.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

e Creditor: Promissory Note - Pohlig Packaging
Amount Owed: $21,384.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 51, 2024

¢ Creditor: Promissory Note - Southern Glazers Wine & Spirits
Amount Owed: $56,625.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

e Creditor: Promissory Note - Worth Higgins
Amount Owed: $8,280.00
Interest Rate: 2.5%
Maturity Date: December 31, 2024

¢ Creditor: Brian Ralph Marks
Amount Owed: $7,226.00
Interest Rate: 0.0%

Related Party Transactions

e Name of Entity: Brian Ralph Marks
Relationship to Company: Officer
Nature / amount of interest in the transaction: During years, the Company
borrowed money from one of its founders, Brian Ralph Marks. As of December
31, 2022, and December 31, 2021 the outstanding amount of this loan is $7,226.
Material Terms: This loan bears no interest and has no maturity date.



Use of Proceeds

If we raise the Target Offering Amount of $15,000.00 we plan to use these proceeds as
follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e StartEngine Service Fees
94.5%

Fees for certain services provided by StartEngine.

If we raise the over allotment amount of $1,235,000.00, we plan to use these proceeds
as follows:

e StartEngine Platform Fees
5.5%

e Marketing
12.3%
We intend to allocate approximately 12.3% of the funds raised to enhance our
marketing efforts, primarily to grow our direct-to-consumer (DTC) channel,
bolster our standard distribution, and explore growth opportunities beyond
Virginia, both online and offline.

o Company Emplovment
23.6%
We plan to use approximately 23.6% of the funds raised to expand our team in
the areas of marketing, sales, and production. This will allow us to scale our
operations in line with our growth expectations.

o Payables
16.1%
Approximately 16.1% of the proceeds will be used to satisfy our obligations to
vendors and other payables that are reflected on our balance sheet.

o Operations
42.5%
The largest portion of the funds, approximately 42.5%, will be allocated to cover


Harrison Hodgin

Harrison Hodgin


operational expenses. This includes investing in our current facility to maintain
its efficiency and compliance, building out our tasting room to provide a unique
customer experience, and providing a buffer for working capital to support
ongoing operations.

The Company may change the intended use of proceeds if our officers believe it is in
the best interests of the company.

Regulatory Information

Disqualification

No disqualifying event has been recorded in respect to the company or its officers or
directors.

Compliance Failure

The company has not previously failed to comply with the requirements of Regulation
Crowdfunding.

Ongoing Reporting

The Company will file a report electronically with the SEC annually and post the
report on its website no later than April 29 (120 days after Fiscal Year End). Once
posted, the annual report may be found on the Company’s website at
https://www.belleislecraftspirits.com/
(https://order.belleislecraftspirits.com/pages/annual-reports).

The Company must continue to comply with the ongoing reporting requirements
until:

(1) it is required to file reports under Section 13(a) or Section 15(d) of the Exchange
Act;

(2) it has filed at least one (1) annual report pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding and
has fewer than three hundred (300) holders of record and has total assets that do not
exceed $10,000,000;

(3) it has filed at least three (3) annual reports pursuant to Regulation Crowdfunding;

(4) it or another party repurchases all of the securities issued in reliance on Section
4(a)(6) of the Securities Act, including any payment in full of debt securities or any
complete redemption of redeemable securities; or

(5) it liquidates or dissolves its business in accordance with state law.

Updates



Updates on the status of this Offering may be found at: www.startengine.com/belleisle

Investing Process

See Exhibit E to the Offering Statement of which this Offering Memorandum forms a
part.



EXHIBIT B TO FORM C

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW FOR Belle Isle Craft
Spirits, Inc.

[See attached]



BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS, INC.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021

(Unaudited)



INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT ..oovviiicreisess i ersinssssersssiass s s ne s s nas e ss s s s e s nmnsss s s s snsanans s nasasans 1
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
BAIANCE SREEL ... e sr s s e st bt s s s s s e b b e e e 5 £ £ £ £ 8 5 5 0 8 8BB4 8 b b b b b e e a0 B
Ly L= =l e L o T T LTy PP TP PO TSSO |
Statement of Changes in Stockholders” BOuity ... s e s s ees s smne s 4
StAtement OF CAsh FIOWS ... it e et e et et e e sttt e e e ba e st s e D

N OtES £ FinanCial St Al IS ooure i ieiuueisrersraresensss v serssess sers s sessss sa sees e ss sess ko ba seosbe £a o808 a8 B8 08 b8 68 8400858 58 2008 0 kS 0008 bu S 2000 b



INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT'S REVIEW REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc.
Richmond, Virginia

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc. (the "Company,”), which
comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, and the related statement of
operations, statement of shareholders’ equity (deficit), and cash flows for the year ending December 31, 2022
and December 31, 2021, and the related notes to the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying
analytical procedures to management's financial data and making inquiries of company management. A review is
substantially less in scope than an audit, the objective of which Is the expression of an opinion regarding the
financial statements as a whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and Review
Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those standards require
us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware of any
material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the results of our
procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.

Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the accompanying
financial statements in order for them to be in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Going Concern

As discussed in Note 13, certain conditions indicate that the Company may be unable to continue as a going
concern. The accompanying financial statements do not include any adjustments that might be necessary
should the Company be unable to continue as a going concarn.

%@'hﬂrpart F%

April 19, 2023
Los Angeles, California




BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.

BALANCE SHEET
(UNAUDITED)
As of December 31, 2022 2021
(USD 5 in Dollars)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash & Cash Equivalents S 304,738 5 104,202
Accounts Receivable, net 179,984 202,124
Inventory 533,151 430,554
Prepaids and Other Current Assets 138,121 3,447
Total Current Assets 1,155,994 740,328
Property and Equipment, net 156,838 214,550
Right-of-Use Assets 173,296 -
Total Assets S 1,486,128 5 954,877

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable S 135,575 S 126,552
Credit Cards 97,632 121,050
Current Portion of Loans and Notes 377,603 636,243
Forward Financing 76,563 84,213
Shareholder Loan 7,226 7,226
Other Current Liabilities 295,924 275,203
Total Current Liabilities 990,524 1,250,487
Promissory Motes and Loans 962,234 1,052,895
Convertible Note 1,482,352 30,000
Accrued Interest on Convertible Note 118,739 151
Right-of-Use Lease, Operating Lease 176,336
Total Liabilities 3,730,185 2,333,533

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock 164 164
Series A-1 Preferred Stock 50 50
Series A-2 Preferred Stock 71 71
Series A-3 Preferred Stock 96 Q6
Series B Preferred Stock 399 399
Additional Paid in Capital 13,244,097 13,240,116
Retained Earnings/(Accumulated Deficit) (15,488,935) (14,619,552)
Total Stockholders' Equity (2,244,057) (1,378,656)
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity 5 1,486,128 5 954,877

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
- 2 -



BELLE IsLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31,

(USD & in Dollars)
Net Revenue
Cost of Goods Sold
Gross Profit

Operating Expenses
General and Administrative
Sales and Marketing
Total Operating Expenses

Operating Income/(Loss)

Interest Expense
Other Loss/{Income)

Income/({Loss) before provision for income taxes

Provision/(Benefit) for income taxes

Net Income/(Net Loss)

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

2022 2021
1,336,465 1,264,007
785,444 703,603
551,021 560,404
997,340 1,097,087
195,949 139,302
1,193,289 1,236,389
(642,268) (675,985)
226,608 136,904
(672,004)
(868,876) (140,886)
(868,876) $  (140,886)




BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY

(UNAUDITED)
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BELLE IsLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
STATEMENTS OF CasH FLows

(UNAUDITED)

For Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
(USD 5 in Dollars)
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
MNet Income/{Loss) (868,876) 5 (140,886)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cosh provided/({used) by operating activities:
Depreciation of Property 27,712 24,822
Amortization of ROU Assets 82,020
Intraduction of new Lease standard (506)
Share-based Compensation 3,981 8,360
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts Receivable, net 22,139 (2,400
Inventory (102,597 (11,330)
Prepaids and Other Current Assets (134,674) 81,012
Accounts Payable 9.024 B,614
Credit Cards (23,418) 6,125
Other Current Liabilities 20,722 (21,082)
Net cash provided/{used) by operating activities (934,473) (18,665)
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of Property and Equipment - 33,597
Right-of-Use Assets (255,316)
Net cash provided/{used) in investing activities (255,316) 33,597
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Forward Financing (7,650) (70,337)
Line of Credit - (2,312)
Borrowing on Promissory Notes and Loans (349,301) (91,140)
Borrowing on Convertible Motes 1,570,940 30,151
Right-of-Use Lease, Operating Lease 176,336
Net cash provided/(used) by financing activities 1,390,325 (123,637)
Change in Cash 200,536 (118,705)
Cash—beginning of year 104,202 222 908
Cash—end of year 304,738 § 104,202

SUPPLEMEMNTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest
Cash paid during the year for income taxes

OTHER NOMNCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES AND SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES
Purchase of property and equipment not yet paid for

Issuance of equity in return for note

Issuance of equity in return for accrued payroll and other liabilities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.



BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31I 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

1. NATURE OF OPERATIONS

Belle Isle Craft Spirits Inc. was incorporated on April 23, 2013, in the state of Virginia. The financial statements of
Belle Isle Craft Spirits Inc. (which may be referred to as the "Company”, “we", “us”, or “our”) are prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("U.5. GAAP"). The Company's

headguarters are located in Richmond, Virginia.

Belle Isle Craft Spirits produces a variety of bottled and canned neutral grain spirit beverages and sells them direct to
consumer, through a variety of retail outlets, and through a variety of restaurant accounts.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of Presentation

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America ("US GAAP"), The Company has adopted the calendar year as its basis of reporting.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with United States GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and
liahilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include all cash in banks. The Company’s cash is deposited in demand accounts at financial
institutions that management believes are creditworthy. The Company’s cash and cash equivalents in bank deposit
accounts, at times, may exceed federally insured limits. As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the
Company's cash and cash equivalents exceeded FDIC insured limits by 521,981 and 50, respectively.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

Accounts receivable are recorded at net realizable value or the amount that the Company expects to collect on gross
customer trade receivables. We estimate losses on receivables based on known troubled accounts and historical
experience of losses incurred. Receivables are considered impaired and written-off when it is probable that all
contractual payments due will not be collected in accordance with the terms of the agreement. As of December 31,
2022, and 2021, the Company determined that no reserve was necessary.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Costs related to bottled inventory, canned cocktails
inventory and merchandise inventory which are determined using a FIFO method.



BELLE IsLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND Decemeer 31, 2021

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost. Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to earnings as incurred
and additions and major improvements are capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwise disposed of, and the
related depreciation are eliminated from the accounts in the period of disposal and the resulting gain or loss is credited
or charged to earnings.

Depreciation is computed over the estimated useful lives of the related asset type or term of the operating lease using
the straight-line method for financial statement purposes. The estimated service lives for property and equipment is as
follows:

Category Useful Life
Leasehold Improvements 15-40 years
Machinery and Equipment 5-10 years
Signage 10 years
Furniture and Fixtures 7 years

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as property and equipment and identifiable intangibles with finite useful lives, are periodically
evaluated for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. We look for indicators of a trigger event for asset impairment and pay special attention to any
adverse change in the extent or manner in which the asset is being used or in its physical condition. Assets are grouped
and evaluated for impairment at the lowest level of which there are identifiable cash flows, which is generally at a
location level. Assets are reviewed using factors including, but not limited to, our future operating plans and projected
cash flows. The determination of whether impairment has occurred is based on an estimate of undiscounted future cash
flows directly related to the assets, compared to the carrying value of the assets. If the sum of the undiscounted future
cash flows of the assets does not exceed the carrying value of the assets, full or partial impairment may exist. If the asset
carrying amount exceeds its fair value, an impairment charge is recognized in the amount by which the carrying amount
exceeds the fair value of the asset. Fair value is determined using an income approach, which requires discounting the
estimated future cash flows associated with the asset.

Income Taxes

Belle Isle Craft Spirits, Inc. is a C corporation for income tax purposes. The Company accounts for income taxes under
the liability method, and deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable
to differences between the financial statement carrying values of existing assets and liahilities and their respective tax
hases. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those
temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Avaluation allowance is provided on deferred tax assets
if it is determined that it is more likely than not that the deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company records
interest, net of any applicable related income tax benefit, on potential income tax contingencies as a component of
income tax expense, The Company records tax positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return based upon the
amount that is more likely than not to be realized or paid, including in connection with the resolution of any related
appeals or other legal processes. Accordingly, the Company recognizes liabilities for certain unrecognized tax benefits
based on the amounts that are more likely than not to be settled with the relevant taxing authority. The Company
recognizes interest and/or penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of income tax expense.



BELLE IsLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND Decemeer 31, 2021

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company maintains its cash with a major financial institution located in the United States of America which it
believes to be creditworthy. Balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to $250,000. At
times, the Company may maintain balances in excess of the federally insured limits.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues in accordance with FASE ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, when
delivery of goods is the sole performance obligation in its contracts with customers. The Company typically collects
payment upon sale and recognizes the revenue when the item has shipped and has fulfilled its sole performance
obligation.

Revenue recognition, according to Topic 606, is determined using the following steps:

1) Identification of the contract, or contracts, with the customer: the Company determines the existence of a
contract with a customer when the contract is mutually approved; the rights of each party in relation to the services to
be transferred can be identified, the payment terms for the services can be identified, the customer has the capacity
and intention to pay and the contract has commercial substance.

2] Identification of performance obligations in the contract: performance obligations consist of a promised in
a contract (written or oral) with a customer to transfer to the customer either a good or service {or a bundle of goods
or services) that is distinct or a series of distinct goods or services that are substantially the same and that have the
same pattern of transfer to the customer,

3) Recognition of revenue when, or how, a performance obligation is met: revenues are recognized when or
as control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers.

The Company earns revenues from the sale of its of its bottled spirits, canned cocktails, ete.

Cost of sales

Costs of goods sold include the cost freight and shipping, ingredients, packaging, and supplies.

Advertising and Promotion

Advertising and promotional costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising and promotional expenses for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 amounted to $195,949 and $139,302, which is included in sales and
marketing expenses.

Research and Development Costs

Costs incurred in the research and development of the Company’s products are expensed as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation to both employee and non-employees in accordance with ASC
718, Compensation — Stock Compensation. Under the fair value recognition provisions of ASC 718, stock-based
compensation cost is measured at the grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized as expense



BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31I 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

ratably over the requisite service period, which is generally the option vesting period. The Company uses the Black-
Scholes option pricing model to determine the fair value of stock options.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying value of the Company’s financial instruments included in current assets and current liabilities (such as cash
and cash eguivalents, restricted cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued
expenses approximate fair value due to the short-term nature of such instruments).

The inputs used to measure fair value are based on a hierarchy that prioritizes observable and unohservable inputs used
in valuation technigues. These levels, in order of highest to lowest priority, are described below:

Level 1—Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets
or liabilities.

Level 2—0Observable prices that are based on inputs not quoted on active markets but corroborated by market data.

Level 3—Unobservable inputs reflecting the Company's assumptions, consistent with reasonably available assumptions
made by other market participants. These valuations require significant judgment.

COVID-139

In March 2020, the outbreak and spread of the COVID-19 virus was classified as a global pandemic by the World Health
Organization. This widespread disease impacted the Company's business operations, including its employees,
customers, vendors, and communities. The COVID-19 pandemic may continue to impact the Company's business
operations and financial operating results, and there is substantial uncertainty in the nature and degree of its continued
effects over time. The extent to which the pandemic impacts the business going forward will depend on numerous
evolving factors management cannot reliably predict, including the duration and scope of the pandemic; governmental,
business, and individuals' actions in response to the pandemic; and the impact on economic activity including the
possibility of recession or financial market instability. These factors may adversely impact consumer and business
spending on products as well as customers’ ability to pay for products and services on an ongeing basis. This uncertainty
also affects management's accounting estimates and assumptions, which could result in greater variability in a variety
of areas that depend on these estimates and assumptions, including investments, receivables, and forward-looking
Buidance.

Subseqguent Events

The Company considers events or transactions that occur after the balance sheet date, but prior to the issuance of the
financial statements to provide additional evidence relative to certain estimates or to identify matters that require
additional disclosure. Subsequent events have been evaluated through April 19, 2023, which is the date the financial
statements were issued.

Recently Issued and Adopted Accounting Pronouncements

The FASE issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have been a number of ASUs to date, including
those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that those issued to date either (i) provide
supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us or (iv) are not expected to have a
significant impact on our financial statements.



BELLE ISLE CRAFT SPIRITS INC.
MNOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31I 2022 AND DECEMBER 31, 2021

Lease Accounting

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, leases (Topic 842). The new standard introduces a new lessee
rmodel that brings substantially all leases onto the balance sheets. The amendments in the ASU are effective for fiscal
yvears beginning after December 15, 2021.

We adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022 using the modified retrospective adoption method which allowed
us toinitially apply the new standard at the adoption date and recognize a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated deficit. In connection with our adoption of the new lease pronouncement, we recorded a charge
to retained earnings.

Effects of Adoption

We have elected to use the practical expedient package that allows us to not reassess: (1) whether any expired or
existing contracts are or contain leases, (2) lease classification for any expired or existing leases and (3) initial direct
costs for any expired or existing leases. We additionally elected to use the practical expedients that allow lessees to: (1)
treat the lease and non-lease components of leases as a single lease component for all of our leases and (2) not recognize
on our balance sheet leases with terms less than twelve months.

We determine if an arrangement is a lease at inception. We lease certain manufacturing facilities, warehouses, offices,
machinery and equipment, vehicles, and office equipment under operating leases. Under the new standard, operating
leases result in the recognition of ROU assets and lease liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet. ROU assets
represent our right to use the leased asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent our obligation to make lease
payments. Under the new standard, operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date
hased on the present value of lease payments over the lease term. As most of our leases do not provide an implicit rate,
upon adoption of the new standard, we used our estimated incremental borrowing rate based on the information
available, including lease term, as of January 1, 2022, to determine the present value of lease payments. Operating lease
ROU assets are adjusted for any lease payments made prior to January 1, 2022, and any lease incentives. Certain of our
leases may include options to extend or terminate the original lease term. We generally conclude that we are not
reasonably certain to exercise these options due primarily to the length of the original lease term and our assessment
that economic incentives are not reasonably certain to be realized. Operating lease expense under the new standard is
recognized on a straight-line basis over them lease term. Our current finance lease obligations consist primarily of
cultivation and distribution facility leases.The FASB issues ASUs to amend the authoritative literature in ASC. There have
been a number of ASUs to date, including those above, that amend the original text of ASC. Management believes that
those issued to date either (i) provide supplemental guidance, (ii) are technical corrections, (iii) are not applicable to us
or (iv) are not expected to have a significant impact on our financial statements,
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FOR YEAR ENDED TO DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND Decemeer 31, 2021

Summary of Effects of Lease Accounting Standard Update Adopted in 2022

The cumulative effects of the changes made to our condensed consolidated balance sheet as of the beginning of 2022
as a result of the adoption of the accounting standard update on leases were as follows:

With effect of
A filed legrie pecominting
Decamber 31, Recognition of Operating Total Effects af standard update
021 Leains Adaptian January 1, 70232
Assmts
Fighit of use asset, net 3 5 255316 g 255 306 5 2553156
Lipksiliting
Currert Partsan of Leass Ohbgation - 79,456 TO,a86 ] 70,86
Leage Diabgation - 176,336 176,336 & 176,336
Cwalerred Reni Current 5 1 5
Dalarred Rant Mon-currant 5
Equity
Betained Eamings - | S0} 1506] 5 |506|
Tedal & - 5 - 5 - ]

3. INVENTORY

Inventory consists of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Bottled Inventory 416,120 296,227
Canned Cocktails Inventory 38,519 38,667
Merchandise Inventory 78,512 95,661
Total Inventory s 533,151 S 430,554

4. DETAILS OF CERTAIN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Accounts receivable consist primarily of trade receivables and accounts payable consist primarily of trade payables.
Prepaids and other current assets consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Prepaid Rent 116,911 -
Prepaid Expenses 21,210 3,447
Total Prepaids and Other Current Assets S 138,121 & 3,447
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Other current liabilities consist of the following items:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021

TTB Payable 112,715 85,941
Due to Park Street (for Accrued Expenses) 103,265 108,468
Due to VA ABC (Events) 79,789 80,558
Other current liabilities 155 236
Total Other Current Liabilities S 295,924 S 275,203

5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, property and equipment consists of:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021
Leasehold Improvements 5 #2,953 5 82,953
Machinery and Equipment 367,143 367,143
Signage 1,111 1,111
Furniture and Fixtures 511 511
Property and Equipment, at Cost 451,718 451,718
Accumulated depreciation (294,881) (237,169)
Property and Equipment, Net S 156,838 s 214,550

Depreciation expenses for property and equipment for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 were in the
amount of 557,712 and 554,922 respectively.

6. CAPITALIZATION AND EQUITY TRANSACTIONS

Common Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 941,831 shares of Common Stock with a par value of 50.001. As of December 31,
2022, and December 31, 2021, 164,300 shares of Common Stock have been issued and are outstanding.

Preferred Stock

The Company is authorized to issue 777,531 shares of preferred stock with a 50.001 par value, of which 50,000 shares
shall be designated as Series A-1 Preferred Stock, 71,255 shares shall be designated as Series A-2 Preferred Stock, 95,899
shares shall be designated as Series A-3 Preferred Stock, and 560,377 shares shall be designated as Series B Preferred
Stock.

As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, 50,000 shares of Series A-1 Preferred 5tock have been issued and
are outstanding.

As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, 71,255 shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stock have been issued and
are outstanding.
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As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, 95,903 shares of Series A-3 Preferred Stock have been issued and
are outstanding.

As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, 398,887 shares of Series B Preferred 5tock have been issued and are
outstanding.

7. SHAREBASED COMPENSATION

During 2021, the Company authorized the Stock Option Plan (which may be referred to as the “Plan”). The Company
reserved 157,812 shares of its Common Stock pursuant to the Plan, which provides for the grant of shares of stock
options, stock appreciation rights, and stock awards (performance shares) to employees, non-employee directors, and
non-employee consultants. The option exercise price generally may not be less than the underlying stock’s fair market
value at the date of the grant and generally have a term of ten years. The amounts granted each calendar year to an
employee or nonemployee is limited depending on the type of award.

Stock Options

The Company granted stock options. The stock options were valued using the Black-Scholes pricing model with a range
of inputs indicated below:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022

Expected life (years) 10.00
Risk-free interest rate 4.41%
Expected volatility 75%
Annual dividend yield 0%

The risk-free interest rate assumption for options granted is based upon observed interest rates on the United States
government securities appropriate for the expected term of the Company’s employee stock options.

The expected term of employee stock options is calculated using the simplified method which takes into consideration
the contractual life and vesting terms of the options.

The Company determined the expected volatility assumption for options granted using the historical volatility of
comparable public company's common stock. The Company will continue to monitor peer companies and other relevant
factors used to measure expected volatility for future stock option grants, until such time that the Company's Common
Stock has enough market history to use historical volatility.

The dividend vyield assumption for options granted is based on the Company's history and expectation of dividend
payouts. The Company has never declared or paid any cash dividends on its Commaon Stock, and the Company does not
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foreseeable future.

Management estimated the fair value of Common Stock based on recent sales to third parties. Forfeitures are
recognized as incurred.
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A summary of the Company’s stock options activity and related information is as follows:
Weighted Weighted Average
Number of Awards Average Exercise Contract Term
Outstanding at December 31, 2020 - -

Granted 24,500 5 0.81

Exercised -

Expired/Cancelled - -
Outstanding at December 31, 2021 24,500 5 0.81 9.09
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2021 11,229 & 0.81 9.05
Granted - 5 -

Exercised - 5 -

Expired/Cancelled - 5 -

Outstanding at December 31, 2022 24500 5 0.81 8.09
Exercisable Options at December 31, 2022 23479 5 0.81 8.09

Stock option expenses for the years ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were 53,981 and 58,360,
respectively.

8. DEBT

Leases

The Company has entered into an operating lease agreement with Manchester Leaf LLC for renting of warehouse space,
of approximately 57,400, The lease periods expire on October 31, 2024, We do not assume renewals in our
determination of the lease term unless the renewals are deemed to be reasonably assured. Qur lease agreement

generally does not contain any material residual value guarantees or material restrictive covenants.

Supplemental balance sheet information related to leases is as follows:

December 31, 2022
Lease Liability
Beginning Balance ] 255,822
Additions 5 -
Lease Payments (79.486)
Balance at end of period ] 176,336

The aggregate minimum annual lease payments under operating lease in effect on December 31, 2022, are as follows:

December 31, 2022
2023 5 90,998
2024 85,338
2025
2026
2027 -
Thereafter .
Total 5 176,336
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Promissory Notes & Loans

During the years presented, the Company entered into promissory notes & loans agreements. The details of the
Company's loans, notes, and the terms are as follows:

For thae veav Baded Deorvilier 23372 Fout the Veaw Erad e Desenber J80H

| Wi R Hatimn g [ Lot Lre ] L] Had-Satieil Ranm [ Lot Aivisril (a1 | Poa Lol el
Dicai lessrarse i Rame Pridiips Adaeil - Frviad ATy s Fugak - I Pl a Fratid Inabti-darid | Fags sl Pyl ] B Iradebmadar il
Lo - D reany Capital, (LE ] AN I9 RGN GTOAE R 0123 LIES FT T 11.23% 1850 [EREC] T (X B 11,133 21,503
Lidey - Hrdesh, vk e % faaiul] JEM AN | FAERPE R ars= 4,001 =1 11E 115810 (LR aA5ra A5 FLLE ] Pl ] LEE T
Loar - Wik g Donsran -] Tt L0 BCHR 20a0 2121 - - Ta1E - TAE - - ELALA T8 28,00
L - Corhei Be R Lo - LIk 0 R I 2131 - LAk - LigD . 1] 1]

Bl Capad dadiada: & 1LET0 a8 581 LS LE] - v TS r LT . " "
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The summary of the future maturities is as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022

2023 5 377,603
2024 3479593
2025 3E507
2026 34,641
2027 41,194
Thereafter 499,900
Total 51,339,837
Forward Financing

On January 20, 2020, the Company entered into Future Receivables and Purchase Agreement with Barnard & Fifth
Capital Group LLC in total purchased amount of $213,000, an interest rate of 15%. As of December 31, 2022, and
December 31, 2021, the outstanding amount of this agreement was 576,563 and 584,213,

Owner Loans

During the years presented, the Company borrowed money from the owners. The details of the loans from the owners
are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 2022 For the Year Ended December 2021
Moin- Non-
Frincipal  Inkerest Bomowing Current Curronk Total Current Current Total
Crwenear Amaurnit Rata Pariad Baturity Date Portion Portion  Indebtedness Portion Portion  Indebtedness
Brian Ralph barks 5 7,226 0.00% Fiseal Year 2019 Mo set maturity | 5 12126 5 - 5 7225 4 1226 5 - 4 7,226
Total 5 T2 5 - 5 s B 1236 5 - 5 740

The imputed interest for 0% interest loans was deemed immaterial and thus not recorded. Since there is no maturity
date set and thus the loan may be called at any time, the loan was classified as current.
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Convertible Note(s)

Below are the detalls of the convertible notes:

Farthe Yesr Ended Decpmber 200 T For the Year Feded December 3030
Principal Imireeai Mriushy Imisreai Aporaed Carrerm Hon-Cumsre Teral Inimreat Hezcrued Carreri  War-Carrerm Taial
Owtt Irmirzmant Mame AirToam Raim b orroewi rg Paricd Curim Lapama Imterant Fortizn Fortion Indebindnane| [xpene Irktarme Portien Parbon Indabtedneas
I3, Corvesrtible Mobs £ anman B L3mafangy  IEaLimaT 40D T o 5 3255l 151 151 - & a5 33,158
3017 Cormaertible Mol [variows lenders|  §L&ZE5T Bk 2@ 133103 1061EE 116138 LESEFEE & L5RASIN
Tonal 14T k5E 5 1MEE9E § 13BTIO £ 1 S1A3FE5T & RS0LORE| S 151 5 151 & ' 5 o) 5 38050

The convertible notes are convertible into Equity Securities or Preferred Stock under following conditions. In the event
that a Qualified Financing occurs prior to the Maturity Date or a Sale of the Company, then the outstanding principal
balance of this Note, together with all accrued and unpaid interest thereon, shall automatically convert in whole without
any further action by the Holder into such Eguity Securities at a conversion price equal to the lesser of (i) 80% of the per
share price paid by the purchasers of such Equity Securities in the Qualified Financing and (ii) (&) 521.10 per share 1) if
a Qualified Financing occurs on or before December 31, 2023, (B) 518.09 per share 2) if a Qualified Financing occurs
after December 31, 2023 and on or before December 31, 2024, or (C) $15.07 per share 3) if a Qualified Financing occurs
after December 31, 2024 and on or before December 31, 2027 (subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any
stock dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the capital stock of the
Company), and otherwise on the same terms and conditions as given to the purchasers of the Equity Securities in such
Qualified Financing. In the event that a Qualified Financing or a Sale of the Company is not consummated prior to the
Maturity Date, then effective upon the Maturity Date, the outstanding principal balance and any unpaid accrued interest
under Convertible MNote and each of the other Notes shall be automatically converted into Series B Preferred Stock of
the Company at a conversion price equal to 515.07 per share (subject to appropriate adjustment in the event of any
stock dividend, stock split, combination or other similar recapitalization with respect to the capital stock of the
Company). Since the conversion feature is convertible into variable number of shares and does not have fixed-for-fixed
features, the conversion feature was not bifurcated and recorded separately.

9. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes for the year ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 consists of the following:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Met Operating Loss 5 (234,597) 5 (213,040)
Valuation Allowance 234,597 213,040
Net Provision for income tax 5 - 5 -

Significant components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2022, and December 31,
2021 are as follows:

As of Year Ended December 31, 2022 2021

Met Operating Loss 5 (860,479) 5 (625,882)
Valuation Allowance 860,479 b25,882
Total Deferred Tax Asset 5 - s -

Management assesses the available positive and negative evidence to estimate if sufficient future taxable income will
be generated to use the existing deferred tax assets. On the basis of this evaluation, the Company has determined that
it is more likely than not that the Company will not recognize the benefits of the federal and state net deferred tax
assets, and, as a result, full valuation allowance has been set against its net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2022
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and December 31, 2021. The amount of the deferred tax asset to be realized could be adjusted if estimates of future
taxable income during the carryforward period are reduced or increased.

For the fiscal year ending December 31, 2022, the Company had federal cumulative net operating loss ["NOL")
carryforwards of 53,186,958, and the Company had state net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards of approximately
53,186,958, Utilization of some of the federal and state NOL carryforwards to reduce future income taxes will depend
on the Company’s ability to generate sufficient taxable income prior to the expiration of the carryforwards. The federal
net operating loss carryforward is subject to an 80% limitation on taxable income, does not expire, and will carry on
indefinitely.

The Company recognizes the impact of a tax position in the financial statements if that position is more likely than not
to be sustained on a tax return upon examination by the relevant taxing authority, based on the technical merits of the
position. As of December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the Company had no unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to income tax matters in income tax expense. As of
December 31, 2022, and December 31, 2021, the Company had no accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain
tax positions.

10. RELATED PARTY

During years, the Company borrowed money from one of its founders, Brian Ralph Marks. As of December 31, 2022,
and December 31, 2021 the outstanding amount of this loan is 57,226. This loan bears no interest and has no maturity
date.

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Contingencies

The Company’s operations are subject to a variety of local and state regulation. Failure to comply with one or more of
those regulations could result in fines, restrictions on its operations, or losses of permits that could result in the
Company ceasing operations.

Litigation and Claims

From time to time, the Company may be involved in litigation relating to claims arising out of operations in the normal
course of business. As of December 31, 2022, there were no pending or threatened lawsuits that could reasonably be
expected to have a material effect on the results of the Company’s operations.

12, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for the period from December 31, 2022 through April 19, 2023, which
is the date the financial statements were available to be issued.

In 2023, the Company entered into loan agreement with PayPal in total amount of $100,858,

The company entered into finance agreement with North Star Leasing LLC in total amount of 533,960, with a base term
of sixty-three months and nominal interest rate of 11.947%.
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The Company restructured agreement with Barnard and Fifth for a total amount of 59,750 with 51,625 each month for
six months.

There have been no other events or transactions during this time which would have a material effect on these financial
statements.

13. GOING CONCERN

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis, which contemplates the
realization of assets and the satisfaction of liabilities in the normal course of business. The Company has a net operating
loss of 642,268, an operating cash flow loss of $934,473, and